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(Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited)

KY1-1104
309GT
(P.0. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)

03 6775 1629

(Nikko AM Offshore Funds — DoubleLine Total Return Fund)

10 1,077
10 1,077
1,000
1,000
2020 30 UFJ
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https://www.pb.mufg.jp/

Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited
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Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited

CIBC

CIBC Bank and Trust Company 2017 27
(Cayman) Limited
2017 27
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
UFJ 2017 23
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2017 28
2017 28
DoubleLine Capital LP
)
2020 2003 26
)
2020
) 2020
2020 480,000 5,172
107.74 480,000 107.74
1,000,000 1,000,000 774
)
2003 26
2009 27
)
2020
EC2Y 5AD 480,000 100.00
Nikko AM Global Holdings (1 London Wall, London EC2Y 5AD, United
Limited Kingdom)

2020
2020
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FTSE Fixed IncomeLLC FTSE Fixed Income LLC

FTSE Fixed Income LLC

JP GBI-EM

JP. Morgan SecuritiesLLC
JP. Morgan SecuritiesLLC
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75,087,290.63 91.66
3,799,270.28 4.64
78,886,560.91 96.29
3,035,602.21 3.71
81,922,163.12
100.00
8,826,293,855
2020
FHR 4326 BZ 3% 2044
3 3,608,822.07| 98.70| 3,562,017.60 | 109.54| 3,953,021.05| 4.83
04/15/44 15
UMBS P#CA4508 2.5% 2034
2.5 2,882,822.87101.12| 2,914,994.85| 106.22 | 3,062,084.87| 3.74
11/01/34 11
UMBS P#BE7188 4% 2047
4 2,485,918.00 | 104.93 | 2,608,544.56 | 108.38 | 2,694,201.09| 3.29
03/01/47
FNR 2014-29 BZ 3% 2044
3 2,405,881.38| 99.39| 2,391,184.26|107.19| 2,578,842.84| 3.15
05/25/44 25
US TREAS NTS 1.5% 2030
1.5 2,150,000.00 [ 107.90 | 2,319,892.45]108.10| 2,324,183.58| 2.84
02/15/30 15
UMBS P#BL4468 2.41% 2029
2.41 2,000,000.00 | 100.25 | 2,005,047.82108.99| 2,179,875.16| 2.66
10/01/29 10
FGLMC P#Q44452 3% 2046
3 2,033,328.63| 99.48| 2,022,839.15|105.46 | 2,144,265.88| 2.62
11/01/46 11
UMBS P#MA3867 2.5% 2039
2.5 1,966,238.27 | 99.85| 1,963,303.59|104.32| 2,051,122.33| 2.50
12/01/39 12
US TREAS BDS 2% 2050
2 1,725,000.00 | 106.89 | 1,843,928.81|114.52| 1,975,529.31| 2.41
02/15/50 15
FHR 4752 PL 3% 2046
10 3 1,878,428.25|100.21| 1,882,386.66|104.35| 1,960,220.09| 2.39
09/15/46 15
UMBS P#AS6503 3.5% 2046
11 3.5 1,798,109.97 | 102.73| 1,847,172.95]107.58 | 1,934,495.96| 2.36
01/01/46
FNR 2018-33 A 3% 2048
12 3 1,804,070.16| 97.06| 1,750,940.50|106.37| 1,919,020.82| 2.34
05/25/48 25
UMBS P#CA4507 2.5% 2034
13 2.5 1,690,048.49 | 101.19| 1,710,133.26 | 106.34| 1,797,275.17| 2.19
11/01/34 11
UMBS P#MA2888 2.5% 2047
14 2.5 1,586,031.08 | 97.09| 1,539,899.51]105.01| 1,665,477.63| 2.03
01/01/47
UMBS P#BL5315 2.44% 2032
15 2.44 1,500,000.00 | 100.61| 1,509,158.22]108.59| 1,628,853.65| 1.99
01/01/32
FNR 2019-74 KT 2.5% 2049
16 2.5 1,500,000.00 | 96.21| 1,443,143.98]104.89| 1,573,309.50| 1.92
12/25/49 12 25
JPALT 2006-A2 2A V/R 2036
17 3.8091 1,840,056.39 | 87.46| 1,609,387.87| 79.08| 1,455,151.55| 1.78
05/25/36 25
VISIO 2019-2 M1 V/R 2054
18 3.26 1,575,000.00 | 100.00 | 1,574,933.65| 90.65| 1,427,754.67| 1.74
11/25/25 1 25
MABS 2007-HE1 A3 V/R 2037
19 0.3945 1,434,600.72| 95.25| 1,366,432.64| 93.58| 1,342,485.58| 1.64
05/25/37 25
UMBS P#ZT1827 3% 2047
20 3 1,213,180.06 | 101.34 | 1,229,433.70 105.84| 1,283,987.95| 1.57
07/01/47
FGLMC P#Q42197 3.5% 2046
21 3.5 1,171,512.84102.99| 1,206,513.25]108.52| 1,271,356.08| 1.55
08/01/46
OOMLT 2007-6 1A1 V/R 2037
22 0.3745 1,453,066.41| 84.54| 1,228,384.33| 86.88| 1,262,464.20| 1.54
07/25/37 25
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FHR 4223 SB V/R 2043

23 5.2227 1,042,577.28| 90.11 939,438.51111.96 | 1,167,225.73 1.42
07/15/43 15
UMBS P#MA2806 3% 2046

24 3 1,004,787.21|100.76| 1,012,456.84 | 105.65| 1,061,526.02 1.30
11/01/46 11
FHR 4748 NT 3.5% 2044

25 3.5 1,000,000.00 | 101.67| 1,016,709.61 | 103.99| 1,039,907.70 1.27
06/15/44 15
RAST 2006-A9CB A6 6% 2036

26 6 1,817,297.82| 75.02| 1,363,427.34| 54.42 988,913.32 1.21
09/25/36 25
PRPM 2019-4A Al V/R 2024

27 3.351 845,937.03 | 100.00 845,937.03| 99.39 840,787.98 1.03
11/25/24 11 25
WMABS 2006-HE3 1 V/R 2036

28 0.3395 907,817.46| 92.85 842,931.35| 91.27 828,564.72 1.01
08/25/36 25
FNR 2016-72 ZG 3% 2046

29 3 792,212.46| 93.60 741,509.33|100.18 793,645.18 0.97
10/25/46 10 25
UMBS P#AS9937 3% 2047

30 3 724,724.07 | 100.05 725,086.82 | 105.80 766,752.36 0.94
07/01/47
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2019 2020
2018 28 8,686,382.00 935,870,797 9.87 1,063
2019 28 2,762,565.00 297,638,753 9.87 1,063
2020 29 2,527,093.00 272,269,000 10.40 1,120
2019 2,242,810.45 241,640,398 10.10 1,088
2,135,445.00 230,072,844 10.29 1,109
2,122,747.77 228,704,845 10.22 1,101
10 2,124,144_70 228,855,350 10.22 1,101
11 2,117,430.99 228,132,015 10.18 1,097
12 2,225,340.61 239,758,197 10.13 1,091
2020 2,496,620.52 268,985,895 10.28 1,108
2,527,093.00 272,269,000 10.40 1,120
3,236,672.07 348,719,049 9.88 1,064
3,007,779.79 324,058,195 9.99 1,076
3,030,805.25 326,538,958 10.06 1,084
3,059,513.17 329,631,949 10.15 1,094
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2018 28 30,965,492.00 3,336,222,108 9.93 1,070
2019 28 23,351,368.00 2,515,876,388 10.05 1,083
2020 29 39,075,715.00 4,210,017,534 10.73 1,156
2019 21,710,554.98 2,339,095,194 10.34 1,114
22,023,171.00 2,372,776,444 10.54 1,136

21,349,755.43 2,300,222,650 10.43 1,124

10 30,141,750.75 3,247,472,226 10.46 1,127

11 38,731,906.94 4,172,975,654 10.44 1,125

12 37,500,066.66 4,040,257,182 10.40 1,120

2020 37,986,458.65 4,092,661,055 10.58 1,140
39,075,715.00 4,210,017,534 10.73 1,156

36,424,750.97 3,924,402,670 10.15 1,094

36,838,623.74 3,968,993,322 10.28 1,108

37,181,860.00 4,005,973,596 10.38 1,118

37,628,113.30 4,054,052,927 10.50 1,131
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2018 28 1,319,826,597 9,747
2019 28 938,086,516 9,560
2020 29 740,002,439 9,878
2019 892,809,453 9,699
907,350,864 9,857

831,596,558 9,775

10 817,977,008 9,757

11 814,233,787 9,712

12 808,207,201 9,640

2020 878,234,584 9,773
740,002,439 9,878

609,196,019 9,341

611,803,010 9,436

573,360,901 9,507

529,333,967 9,593
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2018 28 4,649,612,061 9,785
2019 28 4,111,604,311 9,658
2020 29 4,110,797,927 10,045
2019 4,190,373,591 9,819
4,258,486,599 9,990

4,201,522,844 9,878

10 4,147,925,037 9,873

11 4,115,262,575 9,839

12 4,046,051,637 9,779

2020 4,067,177,774 9,927
4,110,797,927 10,045

3,850,730,629 9,474

3,877,090,163 9,585

3,883,437,240 9,670

3,919,254,020 9,771
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0.12 13 0.06 6
0.24 26 0.12 13
0.24 26 0.12 13
2020 0.02 2 0.06 6
0.02 2 0 0
0.02 2 0 0
0.02 2 0 0
0.68 73 0.36 39
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60 40
120 80
120 80
2020 10 40
10 0
10 0
10 0
340 240
-0.10 -0.10 -1.93 -1.75
2.43 2.42 -0.69 -0.48
7.80 7.96 4.58 4.84
100x
10
10,000
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1,126,302 246,498 879,804
(1,126,302) (246,498) (879,804)
61,776 661,560 280,020
(61,776) (661,560) (280,020)
61,310 98,361 242,969
(61,310) (98,361) (242,969)
3,340,569 222,631 3,117,938
(3,340,569) (222,631) (3,117,938)
134,461 929,636 2,322,763
(134,461) (929, 636) (2,322,763)
2,018,963 698,832 3,642,894
(2,018,963) (698,832) (3,642,894)
139,992 4,587 135,405
(139,992) (4,587) (135,405)
13,275 50,556 98,124
(13,275) (50,556) (98,124)
11,138 34,347 74,915
(11,138) (34,347) (74,915)
588,854 113,665 475,189
(588,854) (113,665) (475,189)
1,246 50,716 425,719
(1,246) (50,716) (425,719)
8,077 24,553 409,243
(8,077) (24,553) (409,243)
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2020 29
2020 29
83,941,250 85,595,090 9,222,015
1,105,253 119,080
1,880 203
214,797 23,142
1,019,797 109,873
87,936,817 9,474,313
989,231 106,580
126,955 13,678
81,530 8,784
47,530 5,121
45,595 4,912
25,333 2,729
3,847 414
2,770 298
464 50
441 48
12,886 1,388
26,395 2,844
1,362,977 146,847
86,573,840 9,327,466
83,329,072 8,977,874
3,244,768 349,591
86,573,840 9,327,466
740,002,439
74,915 9,878
4,110,797,927
409,243 10,045
2,527,093
242,969 10.40 1,120
39,075,715
3,642,894 10.73 1,156

107.74
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2020 29

3,195,763 344,312
3,195,763 344,312
512,288 55,194
452,019 48,701
99,038 10,670
63,042 6,792
15,067 1,623
15,043 1,621
10,028 1,080
3,270 352
74,587 8,036
1,244,382 134,070
1,951,381 210,242
266,416 28,704
(1,055,760) (113,748)
(789,344) (85,044)
3,536,505 381,023
1,209,992 130,365
4,746,497 511,388
3,957,153 426,344
5,908,534 636,585

107.74
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2020 29
1,951,381 210,242
(789,344) (85,044)
4,746,497 511,388
5,908,534 636,585
(96,126) (10,357)
(309,101) (33,303)
(57,938) (6,242)
(263,722) (28,413)
(726,887) (78,315)
11,138 992,671 106,950
8,077 720,567 77,634
61,310 626,045 67,450
2,018,963 21,054,737 2,268,437
34,347 (3,037,545) (327,265)
24,553 (2,222,448) (239,447)
98,361 (997,618) (107,483)
698,832 (7,220,086) (777,892)
9,916,323 1,068,385
15,097,970 1,626,655
71,475,870 7,700,810
86,573,840 9,327,466

107.74

62/199



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

107.74

2020

29

5,908,534 636,585
(52,786,826) (5,687,253)
42,162,701 4,542,609

(85,931) (9,258)
(266,416) (28,704)
(3,536,505) (381,023)
(1,209,989) (130,364)
(984) (106)
23,017 2,480
(13,330) (1,436)

42 5
(15,813) (1,704)
7,825 843

414 45

11,233 1,210
(1,727) (186)
(1,617) (174)
(9,805,372) (1,056,431)
23,473,187 2,529,001
(13,487,741) (1,453,169)
(726,887) (78,315)
9,258,559 997,517
(546,813) (58,914)
1,652,066 177,994
1,105,253 119,080
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2020 29
2020 2020
29 29 2020 29 2020 29
9,560 9,658 9.87 1,063 10.05 1,083
228 256 0.27 29 0.27 29
210 211 0.50 54 0.53 57
438 467 0.77 83 0.80 86
(120) (80) (0.24) (26) (0.12) 13)
9,878 10,045 10.40 1,120 10.73 1,156
4.61 4.86 7.90 8.03
740,002 4,110,798 2,527 272,259 39,076 4,210,048
1.90 1.65 1.58 1.60
2.35 2.61 2.68 2.63

@
&)

107.74
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2020 29
(@D)
98.9
4.9
4.9
AIMCO CLO Series 2015-AA Class AR
500,000 2.68% due 01/15/281.( 0.6 500,046
CFIP CLO 2014-1 Ltd. Class AR
500,000 3.17% due 07/13/29D.® 0.6 500,036
Exantas Capital Corp. 2019-RSO7 Ltd. Class A
79,900 2.66% due 04/15/36(M.(> 0.1 79,900
GAIA Aviation Ltd. Class A
431,175 3.97% due 12/15/44®.® 0.5 439,233
Marathon CLO VIl 2014-7A Ltd. Class A1R
241,220 3.12% due 10/28/25M1.® 0.3 241,309
Northwoods Capital XI-B Ltd. Class Al
500,000 2.92% due 04/19/31(1.® 0.6 497,436
Sprite 2017-1 Ltd. Class A
168,370 4.25% due 12/15/37® 0.2 174,608
Steele Creek CLO 2015-1 Ltd. Class AR
250,000 2.96% due 05/21/29M.(» 0.3 249,523
Steele Creek CLO 2016-1 Ltd. Class AR
500,000 3.01% due 06/15/31(1.® 0.6 494,335
Venture XX CLO Ltd. 2015-20A Class AR
389,541 2.65% due 04/15/27(1.® 0.4 388,968
Wellfleet CLO 2017-2 Ltd. Class Al
500,000 3.07% due 10/20/29(D.® 0.5 500,050
Zais CLO 2 2014-2A Ltd. Class AlAR
138,294 2.99% due 07/25/26().( 0.2 138,294
4,203,738
4,203,738
94.0
58.3
Ajax Mortgage Loan Trust 2018-C Class A
337,366 4.36% due 09/25/65®.(%) 0.4 349,559
Alternative Loan Trust 2005-4 Class 1A2
770,664 5.50% due 04/25/35 0.8 679,067
Alternative Loan Trust 2007-0A8 Class 1Al
699,217 1.81% due 06/25/47( 0.7 620,433
Atrium Hotel Portfolio Trust 2017-ATRM Class
E
111,000 4.71% due 12/15/36(1. 0.1 110,932
Bancorp Commercial Mortgage 2019-CRE6 Trust
Class D
100,000 3.96% due 09/15/36().(> 0.1 100,000
BANK 2017-BNK4 Class XA
974,285 1.42% due 05/15/504% 0.1 73,515
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Q)
BANK 2017-BNK6 Class XA
1,456,772 0.84% due 07/15/60® 0.1 69,818
BANK 2018-BNK10 Class XA
1,873,010 0.74% due 02/15/614 0.1 94,554
Bank 2019-BNK19 Class AS
82,000 3.45% due 08/15/61 0.1 91,021
BANK 2020-BNK25 Class AS
112,000 2.84% due 01/15/63 0.1 118,776
Barclays Commercial Mortgage Trust 2019-C5
Class XA
3,220,548 0.90% due 11/15/52( 0.2 213,194
BBCMS 2018-TALL Mortgage Trust Class F
100,000 4.89%% due 03/15/37(1.( 0.1 100,250
BBCMS Mortgage Trust 2020-C6 Class A4
113,000 2.64% due 02/15/53 0.1 119,118
Bear Stearns ARM Trust 2007-1 Class 2Al
392,201 4.14% due 02/25/474% 0.5 389,626
Bear Stearns Asset Backed Securities | Trust
2007-HE6 Class 1Al
246,678 2.88% due 08/25/37(D 0.3 246,964
Benchmark 2019-B13 Mortgage Trust Class A4
113,000 2.95% due 08/15/57 0.1 122,393
Benchmark 2020-B16 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,428,000 0.93% due 02/15/53® 0.1 113,841
BX Trust 2017-SLCT Class D
62,050 3.71% due 07/15/34M.(> 0.1 62,146
BX Trust 2017-SLCT Class E
104,550 4.81% due 07/15/34(1.( 0.1 104,749
BX Trust 2019-0C11 Class E
135,000 4.08% due 12/09/41(®.% 0.2 143,694
BX Trust 2019-0C11 Class XB
5,138,000 0.32% due 12/09/41®.(® 0.1 103,401
Carrington Mortgage Loan Trust Series 2006-
NC4 Class A3
729,255 1.79% due 10/25/36(1 0.8 697,926
CD 2017-CD4 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,424,976 1.31% due 05/10/504% 0.1 98,991
CFCRE Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C8 Class
XA
1,332,375 1.62% due 06/15/50( 0.1 113,065
CHL Mortgage Pass-Through Trust 2006-0A5
Class 2A1
863,205 2.03% due 04/25/46™ 0.9 769,290
CHT 2017-COSMO Mortgage Trust Class E
174,000 4.66% due 11/15/36(1.( 0.2 174,574
CHT 2017-COSMO Mortgage Trust Class F
93,000 5.40% due 11/15/36M.®@ 0.1 93,116
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2014-GC19
Class XA
2,164,407 1.15% due 03/10/474 0.1 85,640
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2015-GC35
Class XA
1,730,986 0.85% due 11/10/48#% 0.1 56,688
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(@)

Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-P7
Class XA
389,177 1.12% due 04/14/504 0.0 24,374
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2018-TBR
Class D
189,000 3.46% due 12/15/36(.(2) 0.2 189,536
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-555
Class E
100,000 3.62% due 12/10/41® 0.1 102,324
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-555
Class F
100,000 3.62% due 12/10/41® 0.1 97,461
COMM 2013-CCRE9 Mortgage Trust Class XA
17,872,927 0.11% due 07/10/45% 0.1 46,126
COMM 2013-LC6 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,349,467 1.34% due 01/10/46® 0.0 41,995
COMM 2015-LC21 Mortgage Trust Class XA
2,427,599 0.76% due 07/10/48® 0.1 73,406
CSAIL 2019-C18 Commercial Mortgage Trust
Class XA
1,286,744 1.09% due 12/15/52(® 0.1 101,020
CSMC 2019-RPL8 Trust Class Al
773,507 3.32% due 10/25/58(2.(%) 0.9 783,571
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class C
51,000 3.23% due 04/05/33® 0.1 51,196
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class D
61,000 3.33% due 04/05/33@.* 0.1 61,235
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class E
89,000 3.33% due 04/05/33@.® 0.1 89,086
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class XACP
7,012,000 0.57% due 04/05/33@.# 0.0 7,612
CSMC Trust 2017-LSTK Class XBCP
2,553,000 0.21% due 04/05/33@.® 0.0 1,149
CSWF 2018-TOP Class A
86,736 2.66% due 08/15/35(1.® 0.1 86,736
DBUBS 2017-BRBK Mortgage Trust Class E
100,000 3.53% due 10/10/34®.% 0.1 103,341
Deephaven Residential Mortgage Trust 2017-1
Class Al
175,856 2.73% due 12/26/46(.(# 0.2 175,619
Deephaven Residential Mortgage Trust 2017-1
Class A2
175,856 2.93% due 12/26/46(.(# 0.2 175,666
Fannie Mae REMICS 2016-72 Class ZG
1,198,981 3.00% due 10/25/46 1.4 1,200,491
Fannie Mae REMICS 2018-33 Class A
2,138,248 3.00% due 05/25/48 2.6 2,236,776
FNMA REMICS Class BZ
2,381,972 3.00% due 05/25/44 3.1 2,607,654
FNMA REMICS Class KT
1,500,000 2.50% due 12/25/49 1.8 1,547,227
Fontainebleau Miami Beach Trust 2019-FBLU
Class E
85,000 4.09% due 12/10/36 0.1 88,216
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(@)

Fontainebleau Miami Beach Trust 2019-FBLU
Class F
85,000 4.09% due 12/10/36® 0.1 86,897
Fontainebleau Miami Beach Trust 2019-FBLU
Class G
85,000 4.09% due 12/10/362.(® 0.1 85,307
Freddie Mac REMICS 4223 Class SB
1,087,014 3.43% due 07/15/43® 1.3 1,164,750
Freddie Mac REMICS 4627 Class Z
431,778 3.00% due 10/15/46 0.5 432,304
Freddie Mac REMICS 4748 Class NT
1,000,000 3.50% due 06/15/44 1.2 1,063,847
Freddie Mac REMICS 4752 Class PL
2,225,508 3.00% due 09/15/46 2.7 2,315,718
Freddie Mac REMICS Class BZ
3,572,958 3.00% due 04/15/44 4.6 3,906,862
GCAT 2019-2 LLC Class Al
352,864 3.47% due 06/25/24(.(3) 0.4 354,816
Great Wolf Trust 2019-WOLF Class E
101,000 4.39% due 12/15/36(M).(> 0.1 101,287
Great Wolf Trust 2019-WOLF Class F
101,000 4.79% due 12/15/36(1D. 0.1 101,413
GS Mortgage Securities Corp. Trust 2019-SOHO
Class E
82,000 3.53% due 06/15/36M.® 0.1 82,000
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2015-GC28 Class
XA
1,549,286 1.01% due 02/10/48@ 0.1 63,202
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2017-GS6 Class
XA
880,969 1.04% due 05/10/504 0.1 58,479
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2017-GS7 Class
XA
086,336 1.13% due 08/10/50* 0.1 66,121
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2020-GC45 Class
AS
33,000 3.17% due 02/13/53 0.0 35,650
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2020-GC45 Class
XA
1,228,886 0.68% due 02/13/53% 0.1 67,842
HPLY Trust 2019-HIT Class F
91,523 4.81% due 11/15/36(M.® 0.1 91,697
Jimmy Johns Funding LLC 2017-1A Class A2l11
828,750 4.85% due 07/30/47™ 1.0 904,208
JP Morgan Alternative Loan Trust Class 2A2
1,980,951 4.10% due 05/25/364 2.0 1,693,270
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Corp. 2017-FL10 Class D
3,115 3.56% due 06/15/32(™.( 0.0 3,092
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2014-C20 Class XA
2,365,040 0.95% due 07/15/474% 0.1 57,520
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(@)

JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2018-LAQ Class A

83,555 2.66% due 06/15/32(1).(2 0.1 83,480
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2018-WPT Class FFX

67,000 5.54% due 07/05/33(> 0.1 70,320
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2020-LO0OP Class E

100,000 3.86% due 12/05/38(> 0.1 103,328
JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2015-C28 Class C

94,000 4.20% due 10/15/48* 0.1 99,027
JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2015-C32 Class XA

1,279,995 1.33% due 11/15/48% 0.1 45,762

JPMDB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2019-COR6 Class A4

112,000 3.06% due 11/13/52 0.1 121,653
JPMDB  Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2019-COR6 Class AS

113,000 3.41% due 11/13/52 0.1 123,702
MASTR Asset Backed Securities Trust 2007-HE1l
Class A3
1,508,477 1.84% due 05/25/37(V) 1.7 1,451,635

Morgan Stanley Bank of America Merrill Lynch
Trust 2014-C19 Class XA
1,057,329 1.00% due 12/15/474% 0.0 40,167
Morgan Stanley Bank of America Merrill Lynch
Trust 2017-C33 Class XA
1,810,028 1.42% due 05/15/504% 0.1 121,879
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2011-Cl1 Class
D
138,000 5.37% due 09/15/47(.(® 0.2 141,862
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2016-UB11
Class XA
1,261,990 1.61% due 08/15/494 0.1 93,011
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2016-UBS12
Class XA
1,257,698 0.77% due 12/15/494 0.1 48,380
Morgan Stanley Capital I Trust 2017-H1 Class
XA
979,202 1.43% due 06/15/504 0.1 71,592
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2019-L3 Class
AS
91,000 3.49% due 11/15/52 0.1 100,023
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2019-L3 Class
XA
1,692,369 0.65% due 11/15/524% 0.1 93,792
MRCD 2019-MARK Mortgage Trust Class G
185,000 2.72% due 12/15/36® 0.2 173,237
Natixis Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-2PAC Class D
113,000 3.75% due 12/15/38™ 0.1 119,411
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(@)

Option One Mortgage Loan Trust 2007-6 Class
1A1
1,497,640 1.82% due 07/25/37(M 1.6 1,355,987
PMT Credit Risk Transfer Trust 2019-2R Class
A
884,947 4.40% due 05/27/23(1.® 1.0 890,445
PRPM 2018-1 LLC Class Al
992,739 3.75% due 04/25/23®.(* 1.2 997,573
PRPM 2019-1 LLC Class Al
544,825 4.50% due 01/25/24.® 0.6 551,576
PRPM 2019-4 LLC Class Al
875,985 3.35% due 11/25/24>.® 1.0 877,371
PRPM 2019-GS1 Class Al
567,534 3.50% due 10/25/24(.(® 0.7 575,216
PRPM 2020-1 LLC Class Al
593,000 2.98% due 02/25/25®.® 0.7 596,602
RALI Series 2006-QS13 Trust Class 1A3
716,807 6.00% due 09/25/36 0.8 652,911
RALI Series 2007-QH5 Trust Class All
1,127,012 1.86% due 06/25/37() 0.7 601,188
RASC Series 2007-EMX1 Trust Class A13
873,093 1.83% due 01/25/37( 0.9 800,177
Residential Asset Securitization Trust 2006-
A9CB Class A6
1,824,606 6.00% due 09/25/36 1.3 1,083,673
Rosslyn Portfolio Trust 2017-ROSS Class A
65,000 2.61% due 06/15/33(1.® 0.1 64,987
Rosslyn Portfolio Trust 2017-R0SS Class B
65,000 2.91% due 06/15/33M.® 0.1 64,963
SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-E LLC
Class B
500,000 3.49% due 11/26/40® 0.6 524,116
SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-E LLC
Class C
250,000 4.16% due 11/26/40® 0.3 267,331
SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-F LLC
Class BFX
500,000 3.62% due 01/25/41® 0.6 533,312
Springleaf Funding Trust 2017-AA Class A
250,000 2.68% due 07/15/30® 0.3 251,503
Spruce Hill Mortgage Loan Trust 2020-SH1
Class M1
500,000 3.22% due 01/28/502.( 0.6 511,022
Starwood Mortgage Residential Trust 2018-IMC2
Class A2
332,873 4.22% due 10/25/482.(® 0.4 340,253
Starwood Mortgage Residential Trust 2018-IMC2
Class A3
332,873 4.38% due 10/25/482.(® 0.4 340,231
Tharaldson Hotel Portfolio Trust 2018-THPT
Class E
153,105 4.85% due 11/11/34().> 0.2 153,010
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C1 Class
XA
1,168,706 1.56% due 06/15/504 0.1 102,166
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(@)

UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C3 Class
XA
2,394,318 1.11% due 08/15/504% 0.2 148,036
UBS-Barclays Commercial Mortgage Trust 2013-
C5 Class XA
1,747,611 0.95% due 03/10/46(.# 0.0 40,061
Vantage Data Centers Issuer LLC 2018-1A Class
A2
490,000 4.07% due 02/16/43® 0.6 512,510
Vericrest Opportunity Loan Trust 2019-NPL2
Class Al
716,781 3.97% due 02/25/49®.® 0.8 721,656
Visio 2019-2 Trust Class M1
1,575,000 3.26% due 11/25/54.(® 1.9 1,667,040
VOLT LXXXV LLC Class AlA
296,833 3.23% due 01/25/502.® 0.3 298,147
VOLT LXXXVII LLC Class AlA
390,000 2.98% due 02/25/502.®) 0.5 390,430
Washington Mutual Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates WMALT Series 2007-2 Trust Class
1A1
542,801 7.00% due 04/25/37 0.4 347,218
Washington Mutual Asset-Backed Certificates
WMABS Series 2006-HE3 Trust Class 1A
942,723 1.78% due 08/25/36() 1.0 884,793
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2010-C1
Class C
140,000 5.63% due 11/15/43@.% 0.2 142,225
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2015-
C27 Class C
98,000 3.89% due 02/15/48 0.1 99,470
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2015-
NXS4 Class E
193,000 3.67% due 12/15/48(.(% 0.2 176,597
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2016-
C33 Class XA
926,863 1.72% due 03/15/594 0.1 67,955
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-
C38 Class XA
943,150 1.06% due 07/15/504 0.1 57,405
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2019-
C54 Class A4
113,000 3.15% due 12/15/52 0.1 123,668
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2019-
C54 Class XA
1,468,393 0.84% due 12/15/52(H 0.1 103,372
Wells Fargo Mortgage Backed Securities 2006-
AR14 Trust Class 2A1
732,662 4.55% due 10/25/36( 0.8 726,678
50,489,575
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(@D)
3.7
U.S. Treasury Note
2,300,000 1.63% due 08/15/29 2.8 2,403,051
U.S. Treasury Notes
700,000 2.38% due 05/15/29 0.9 776,836
3,179,887
32.0
Fannie Mae Pool
2,000,000 2.41% due 10/01/29 2.4 2,115,280
1,500,000 2.44% due 01/01/32 1.8 1,579,877
4,778,098 2.50% due 11/01/34 5.8 4,950,262
2,076,583 2.50% due 12/01/39 2.5 2,147,909
1,681,333 2.50% due 01/01/47 2.0 1,726,048
2,500,000 2.55% due 01/01/32 3.1 2,681,094
1,092,687 3.00% due 11/01/46 1.3 1,143,142
777,256 3.00% due 07/01/47 0.9 811,632
1,930,773 3.50% due 01/01/46 2.4 2,042,156
2,825,623 4.00% due 03/01/47 3.6 3,056,634
Freddie Mac Gold Pool
2,189,683 3.00% due 11/01/46 2.6 2,288,035
1,335,288 3.50% due 08/01/46 .6 1,425,050
357,634 3.50% due 11/01/46 0.4 381,616
Freddie Mac Pool
1,314,865 3.00% due 07/01/47 1.6 1,373,155
27,721,890
81,391,352
83,941,250 85,595,090
83,941,250 98.9 85,595,090
1.1 978,750
100.0 86,573,840
(9,327,465,522 )
(1)2020 29 Floating Rate
(2)144A 1933 144A
(3)2020 29
(4)2020 29 Variable Rate
107.74
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Brown

Brothers 45,254 2020 30 (410) 10 10

Harriman &

Co.

CITI PB 741,181,431 2020 30 (6,727,032) 154,875 154,875

CITI PB 105,258 2020 30 (11,570,675) (2,176) (2,176)
154,885 (2,176) 152,709

CITI PB 4,090,840,718 2020 30 (37,128,853) 854,810 854,810

CITI PB 44,508,312 2020 30 (403,160) 10,102 10,102

CITI PB 518,075 2020 30 (56,950, 159) (10,710)  (10,710)
864,912 (10,710) 854,202
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2020 29

2020 29
85,595,090 85,595,090
1,019,797 1,019,797
86,614,887 86,614,887
2020 29
12,886 12,886
12,886 12,886
FASB ASC 740

50
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4,603,462

23,127,234

(

)

39,669

(

)
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)
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)
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10 213
42
175,497
40
879,116
()



2019

2020

2019

2020

2020

28

29

28

29

29
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8,426,936 36,935,001 2,762,565 23,351,368 71,475,870
992,671 720,567 626,045 21,054,737 23,394,020
(3,037,545) (2,222,448) (997,618)  (7,220,086)  (13,477,697)
(96,126)  (309,101) (57,938) (263,722) (726,887)
574,514 2,986,563 194,039 2,153,418 5,908,534
6,860,450 38,110,582 2,527,093 39,075,715 86,573,840
98,124 425,719 280,020 2,322,763 3,126,626
11,138 8,077 61,310 2,018,963 2,099,488
(34,347) (24,553) (98,361) (698,832) (856,093)
74,915 409,243 242,969 3,642,894 4,370,021
91.58 93.12 10.40 10.73
10,000
10.00
10
2020 29
2020 29 126,955
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10

2017

ASC 815-10-50
a b

ASC 815

1SDA 1SDA
1SDA
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2020 29 MNA
MNA
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 10 10
Citibank PB 1,019,787 (12,886) 1,006,901
1,019,797 (12,886) 1,006,911
2020 29 MNA
MNA
(€]
Citibank PB 12,886 (12,886)
12,886 (12,886)
@
2020 29
1,019,797 (12,886)
2020 29
(1,054,826) 1,209,989
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0.68 0.03 0.25
0.22
0.40 0.35
2020 29
512,288 2020 29 45,595
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
50,000
2020 29 99,038 2020
29 47,530
0.015
15,000 2020
29 15,043 2020 29 3,847
0.02
2020 29 15,067
2020 29 2,770
0.60
2020 29 452,019
2020 29 81,530
10
140,000
FATCA/CRS 1,500
11
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2007 - 2008
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13
2020 26
2020 2020
1,690
2020 2020
745,021
662,193
23,250
CovID-19
2020 11
(

)

26

26

23,667

1,054,815

460,675

217,396

2019
( )COVID-19
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94,307

100,915

1,630,294

153,869

COVID-19
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 29, 2020

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

AsaEs:

Irvpestmenils A securities, Bl vatae [cost of USD 3,941, 250) ush 8BS, 595,000
Lanh 1,105,253
Receivable for subscrinbion proceeds 1,580
It Eesl feceivabie 214,797
Unnpa sed agparecation oa lonwad lanegn carrency exchanie coalrscls 1,019 a7
Todal asaects BT 936517
Lizhilities:

Payabie for investments puschased A9, 231
Payabie for Uails redeemied 126,955
Sacraed datoutors fees B1.5300
Sacroed custodian s sub-sdminstrators fees 47 530
Agerued management lses 45585
Sacraed probessional Tees 25,333
Sacroed rustes fees JE47
Accrued agent company's fees 2.
Accraed registration Tees 464
Accraed transler agent Tees 441
Unsrpaised depcecinlan on lorwatd aregn currendy exdhange conlracls 12 586
Db enpenses 26,105
Todal liabilites 1362977

Net Assets Attributable fo Unitholders usn HES73,E40
Analysiz of Met Astets:
Pald Incapital ush B3 329072
Todal distributable earnings 3,244, T6H
Net Assets Attributable fo Unitholders usn 6,573,840
Mirt At Valoo pir Unit
{IPY Monthiy Distribation Class. IPY 780,002,439 & 74,915 Units outstanding) L SRR
{IFY Semi-Amnea | Dt Dutos Class JFY 4,110,797 927 + 409, 243 Units outstamdag) FY 10,045
_—
{USD Moty Distribution Class USD 2,527,093 + 242,969 Linits aoutstasding] 5D 1040
{USD SembAnnual Distrioution Class USD 39,075,715 + 3,642 594 Units outstanding) ush 10,73

The accompanying notes are an invegral part of these financial state ments.
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 29, 2020
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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IneRstmant Ineam:
interest
Tetal Investment lagams

Exparises:
Management Tees
Distrowtor's fees
Custodian and sub-adminstrator's fees
Prodesaonal fees
Agent company's fees
Triuntbee fees
Tranafer agent fees
Registration fees
Ohier ey

Total Expenses

Met Investmant |Rcomeas

Realized and Unrealired Gaing/{Losses):
Rz ol gain) [ iosses)
Imseesirmends in secarites
Fareign currency transactions and Torward foreign cusrency exchange contracts
Het realized loses
Change inwnrealived appreciation[depr eciation]
Imeestrments in secarities
Fareign currency transactions and Torward foreign cusrency exchange contracts
Ket cheage in warealized sppreciation
Mt nealized a5 wirealized gains

Met ncrease innet adsets resulting from operations

[157+] 185 Ta3
3,195,763

512 288
452019
99,034
63,042
15,067
15,003
10,028
3270
74587
1,244,182

1,951,381

266416

{1,055, T60)
[¥£9,344)

1,536,505
1,209,592
4,746 497
3,957,153

ush 5,908,534

The accompanying notes are an invegral part of these financial state ments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020
{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Ineridii [Decrenis] in Mt Asets ram:

Operations:

Kot invistmet iscomie usD 1951281
Kot riealiged \osses {TED 144)
Ket change inuncealised agaredation 4 Ta6 407
Ket incremse imnet assets resulting from operations 3908534

Distributions to Unithalders:

1P Moathly Dot tion Class (96, 1.26)
1Y Spmd-Annual Distribufion Class { B9 101}
USE Monthly Distriouton Cas [57 S38)
USESemi-Anniual Distribaton Chss [363,722)
Todal Distributions (726 867)
Capital Transactions:
LIt isdand
1PY Mesathly Distioation Class (11,138 Units) 292,671
I Spmi-Annual Distribution Class {B077 Uaits) 710567
USEr Monthly Distrioution s {61,310 Un'ts) 6206 045
USE SembAnnual Distribation Cass (2,008 963 Unigs) 21,054 737
Un'ts redeemied
IFY Moathly Disteinuton Class (34, 347 Units) {3.037,545)
1FY Semc-Anaual Distributes Cass {14,553 Units) (2221 448)
USDr Moenthly Distribution Cass {96,361 Units) {997 G1B)
USE Semi-Annual Bistribation Chss (G958 532 Unaits) 4 220 ABG)
Ket increase innet assets resulting from cip'tal transactons 916 323
Total lncreass n Nat Asseis 15,047 970
Mt Adseti;
Beg nining of year TLAT5E0
Endd ol year Wsh Bi5.573 840

The accompanying notes are an invegral part of these financial state ments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended February 29, 2020
{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Cacsh flows from operating activities:
Ket increase in net assels resulting Fom operations S0 5508534

Adustments to reconcle the net inorease in net assets resulting from operations to net cash used in

operating sctivities:
Purchase ol fwestmients (52,786, 526)
Proceeds [ram sa'e and maturity ol iavesbrsenls 42 162,701
Ket amaortizathon and (accretion) of premiums and discouants on corporate debt obd igations and shost term

avestrmenks [85.531)
Reazed gains on investments in secusities | 266, 416)
Change inunsealized apgeecition on invesiments 13.536.505)
Change inwnrealiped appeeciation an lerwand foreign cusrency exchange coalacts {203 3R}

Change in assets and liabilities related to operations:

I ripseE in inlenest redeialie [FBa)
I rgrsee i acorud custodian aad sab-admindsrates's fees 23017

Decrease in accroed prolessional Tees [13 330}
Increase inacorued trustes fees 42

Decrease in accrued registration fees [15.813)
InGrease in accued management fees THI5

Triaz rpiriap iry gotusd ageal comaanmy s hei 414

Increase in acorued distrThution fees 11,233

Decrease in transfer agent fees {1,727
Dechpase in B0 oed C1Rer Expenses. jl.ﬁl!!
Net cash used in operating activities !B.H!,E!!I
Cash flows used in financing activities:

Peoeeeds Tram Units Baded 2314731187

Paymsents on Lais redeemed £13,487 741}
Distriwtions paid o Unitho'ders {726 ERT)
Nt cash pravided by nsndng sctivities 9,258,550

Mt decrease in cach and foreign currency {54681 3)
Casn and foreign carrency ot beginning of year 652,066

Cash and fodeign ourremcy at ard of yoar usm 1,105 253

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial state ments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020
Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios
(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
1Y Moathly  PY Semi-Annual uso ¢ USD Sami-Annusl
Gistribution Class  Distribution Class  Distribution Class  Distsibution Class

For the Yesr Ended For the Yoar Ended  For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
Februsry 20, 2020 February 29, 2000 February 29, 2080 February 29, 2000

Ket Asset Value, beginaing of yoear IPY 9 560 1Py a638  UsSD SHT WsD 10.05
Ket investment income’ ™ 228 256 027 0.27
et realiged and uarealized gains 210 211 ns 053
Mt increase in ael assels resulting From eperations 438 d67 ory 080
Liess i stribalions (120) [{:0] [0.24] {012
Net Asset Value, end of year 1P 9ETE  OPY 10045 USD 1040 USD 10.73
Todal return 461% 4. 56% T.90% R.O3%
iy 1y uso usD
Ratios)Supplermental data:
Kt mssets end al ypeas (0005 740,002 4,110,798 2527 39,076
Ratics of expiries 1 average net st ™ 1.90% 1.65% 156% 1.E0%
Ratics af neel [ rwestmeal Acome Lo average nel
awets™ 2.35% 261% 2 6E% 2.63%

_"fa‘(u'-a[l.!] whing mverape Lais oulstanding lor the year
" Caleulated on an sl b,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial state ments.

89/199



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

FORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS

February 29, 2020

(Expressed in United States Dollar)

Principal % of Nt

Curreney  Amount  Security Deseription Asvets Fair Value
FAED INOOME SECLIRITIES {98.9%)
CAYMAN ISLANDS {4.5%)
ASSET-BACKID SECURIMILS [A5%)
AINCE QLD Series J015-08 Clas AR

S SONDOF  1.6E% due 01715287 065 (L1 S0 046
CFIP CLO 20081 Ltd. Clans AR

S 00000 5.17% duee 00fiaf2d T s 00, 580
Faardas Cagital Corp. 2019%RS07 Lid. Class A

s THREON  D66% due (415036700 [ 79,500
GuAlA Aviation L1d, Clasi &

LD 43,17 1.97% due 121578470 s LELTFEE]
Sasathon CLOVE 2004-Ti Led, Clasi A1R

usD 241,230 3.12% due B0f28/2511® [ES 241,309
Nortnods Cap'tal 0HB Ltd, Class Al

usDr S0, 000 2.92% due A1HATD 13 457,436
Sarite 20071 L, Clams &,

s LS ] 4.25% due 1IA5RATFT g 174,608
Stere Creek CLO 20051 Led. Class AR

s JE0006  296% due 05F20/25T 03 4852
Stere Creek CLO 20061 Ld. Class AR

usD SO0, 000 1.01% due 06F15/31/145 113 454,935
iR 300 CLOY Led, 201 5204 Class AR

uso 4E5,541 265% due D4f15/2 7R o4 EEELE
Wel et CLO 2047 - L1e, Cas Al

usD SO0, 000 107% due 020025 s 500,050
Zaln CLO 2 2004-24 Ltd, Dl A1AR

USD 138,294 2.99% due DIf25/261 0 0z 138,294
TOTAL ASSET-BACKED SECLRITIES 4,208,738
TOTAL CAYRMAN BLANDS 2,200,738
UNITED STATES [S4U0P)
ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES [52.3%)
Ajax Morgage Loan Trust 20080 Class A

usD ITI6E  4I6W due 092565 0.4 449,558
Arernatie Loan Trast 20064 Class LAZ

UsD 0 5500 due 4F25/35 [E] G4, 067
Alperrate Loan Troit 2007-0A8 Cass 141

usD 559,217 1.81% due DBf25/a 71 o7 621,433
Ariem Wotel Portfolo Trust 201 7-ATRM Class £

usD 110,000 4,71% due 12A15736 o 110,532
Bangorp Comment s Mortgage 200 %CREE Trust Clads 0

S0 WO0OF  3H6E due 097157367 4 00 00
BAMIK 2077-BHES Class XA

s 974,285 1A% due 05115750 o1 74,515
BAMIE J077-BHIE Class XA

UsD 1,468,172 0.B4% due 0771560 o1 4, B8
RAME J018-BHEID Class XA

usD LETI0N0 0.74% due D2f15/61" ol 94,554
Barik T S-BNKT S Clin A5

usD 2,000 345% due 081551 o1 51,021
BAMK JOR0-BHEDS Class A5

usD N2000  2B4&% due D1F15/63 o 118,776
Barclays Commencial Morgage Trost 201905 Cass K&

UsD FI0548 090 due 11557 032 213,194
BECMS 2015-TALL Martgage Trust Class |

s 100, e &R due DAFISAT ni 100250
BECMS Martgage Trust 202006 Class A4

LS 113,060 2.0a% due 02715753 ol 119,118
Bear Steasns ARM Trust 2007-1 Cass 241

usD 352,200 4.14% due D2f2577" s 185,626
Hizar Steasns Adiet Racked Secu it 1 Tron 2007-FEGClav 141

UsD 246,578 2RH% due DBS25ATY E} 245,564
Bencsmack M19-B13 Moctgage Trust Cans a4

usD MA00 2.95% due BBF1S/5T ol 122,35
Benchmark 2020-B16 Mortgage Trust Cass KA

i 1438 DO 0934 due D2A55F ol 113,841
B Trost 200 7-5LCT Clas D

B 62060 3.71% due 007157347 4 62,146
B Teuat 2H07-5LCT Claes F

s 104550 481% due 00f15724F o1 104,744

The accompanying notes are an invegral part of these financial state ments.
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February 29, 2020
(Expressed in United States Dollar)
Prancipal % of Nat
Currangy  Amsum Saeusity Dhseription Asiati Fair Valus
FIMED INCOME SECURITIES {98.5%] [continued)
UNITED STATES [SaU0%) {oomtimued)
ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES (55 3% {continsed)
B Troat 20A%-0C11 Cland §
usD 133,000 4 08% due 12f05fa179 0% [1.1:] 143,654
B Trust 20090011 Clans X8
usD 5,138,000 0.32% due 120800179 ol 104,401
Cardington Moctgage Loan Troat Series J006-NCE Cavs A3
L33 19,255 1,795 gk $0F2536" & 647 926
€0 201 70 Morigage Trust Claws KA
0] 1,424 57 1.81% due 051050 m 58,951
CFCRE Comemerc al Morigage Trust 201 708 Class XA
usD (ECFET] 162% due 06/15/50° o1 113,065
CHL Morgage Pass-Theough Trum 2006-005 Clins 241
usD B 206 20%% due D4f25785" s 68,290
CHT 00 F-LOSMO Margage Trud Clnd E
usD 174,000 4 66% due 1115/ 0z 174,574
CHT 201 7-COSMO Motgage Trust Class F
usD 53,000 540 due 1115360 ol 1,116
Citigroup Commencial Morgage Trust 2014:GC1S Cass KA
s 2,164 400 1.15% due DRFIORE T 'R | 85,640
Citigroup Comvmencial Momgage Troat 2005-GC35 Class XA
= 1,730,986 O85% due 11710788 o1 56,688
Citigroup Commencial Morgage Trust 2007-F7 Class K&
UsD =S T 1.12% due DaF18/50" oo FLEF
Ctigraup Comvmsenzial Mamgage Troat 2008-TRR Cass D
usD 125,000 3.46% due 12015/ 0z 189,536
CHtigroup Comvssercial Momgage Tro 2020-555 Class E
usD N0, D00 362% due 1211000170 o 102,324
Citigroup Commencia) Momgage Trowt 2020-555 Class F
UsD N0, D00 262% due 121100217 ol 57,451
OO F013-CCRES Mortgage Trost Class XA
[0 ITATZETT 0.11% due 071005 . 46,126
COMN 2013-LCE Morgage Trost Class KA
s 1, 545467 1545 due 00 10aE" o 41,955
COMAM TON5-LE2Y Mamgages Troar Cass XA
LS XTS5 0.76% due 07 F107a8" ol 4,406
CSAIL HAS-C1H Commencial Momgage Trust Class G4
usD 1,785,144 109 due 12f15/52 o1 100,020
CSMIC J0N5-RPLE Trust Class A1
(1.7 TH507 3.32% due 02558719 nE 783,571
MG Trust B0 F-LSTE Class C
S0 SBOOB  B2FM due 405377 o 51,196
CEMIC Trust 200 7-LSTK Class O
LS GLOOB  BEE due 4f0G/ATT ol 61,235
CSMIC Trust 200 F-LSTE Class E
usD 5,000 3.33% due 0805/350 ol 59,086
CESMC Trust 200 7-LSTE Class XACP
usD 10012000 0.57% due 405 TTS on 1812
CHMC Truse D01 F-LSTE Class XBCF
LD 2,553,000 0.21% due D4f05/3 3719 oo 1,184
CEWF 2008-TOP Oass &
usD 86,736 2.66% due DBAISASER ol 86,736
DBUES J017-BEBK Motgage Trust Clans
s B0, 0 3.5 due OFIYAST o 103,341
D phaven Residential Momgage Trust 20071 Cass A1
[E1 175856 27EH due 12F26MET 3 175,648
Deephaven Residential Mo gage Trust 20071 Cass A2
usD 173,856 2.9%% due 12f26/45™ 02 175, Bk
Faneie W REMICS 201672 Cass 26
UsD 1,158 981 200% due BOF25/46 14 1,200,451
Faaie Mae REMICS J018-33 Cads &
usD 2138248 3,000 g 05/25/48 26 2,236,776
FRAVA REMBCS Class BE
usD 2381572 3,000 due D5/25/44 ER 2,607 554
FRMA REMICS Class KT
s B, 50D, Dk 3 50F% cue 12725745 I8 1,547,327
Fontaine bieag Miami Beach Trost 2019-FBLU Cass B
s ES000 A0 due KZAIGE6T [ 88,216
Fevrmaing bieau Miami Besch Troa 2019-FALU Class F
UsD 000 A0 due 121006 o1 BT

The accompanying notes are an invegral part of these financial state ments.
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PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS [continued)
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February 29, 2020
(Expressed in United States Dollar)
Prancipal % of Nat
Curreney  Amount  Secusity Duseription Aty Fair Valug
FIMED INCOME SECURITIES {98.5%] [continued)
UNITED STATES [SaU0%) {oomtimued)
ASIET-BACKID SECLIRIMIES [ 1%) {continesd]
Fantaine bless Miami Besch Trod 2019-FBLU Class G
usD 5,000 A 0% due 12f10/3679 o [1.1:] 85,307
Freddie Mac REMECS 4225 Class SH
usD LIET004 34T% due D7f15003" 13 1,164,750
Friddie Mac REMICS 52T Class 7
so 43T HOME cue BOFLGSe6 5 432,304
Freddie Mac REMNCS 4748 Class NT
[1.0] R0 50 due DOS15/04 1.2 1,044 nay
Freddie SMac REMICS 4752 Class PL
usD 2,715508 300 due 091546 FX 2,315,718
Fregdie Mac REMICSClas BT
1] 572558 B0 cue 0411584 a.is 500, B
GLAT 20052 LLC Clad A1
usD 452,864 247% due DBf25/2470 o4 154,516
Great Wod Truat 201900 Cans
usD Vi, D00 4.39% due 12f157361® ol 101,287
Great Wil Trust 2019590LF Cans F
USE BORO00 47 due 12A1503614R ol 101,483
G5 Mortgage Securities Corp. Troat 20095080 Clas F
= EZOOF  3.5¥% due 06F15/36 T o1 82,000
G5 Mortgage Securities Trovt 20056008 Cass XA
UsD 1,549,285 1.01% due D2F10/88™" o1 53,208
G5 MoAgage Securities Troat 2007656 Class XA
usD 820,565 1.04% due D5f 1050 ol 58,479
G5 Moemgage Securites Troar 2007 -G5T Clind XA
usD 865,136 1,13% due DRSS o 66,121
% Mortgage Securites Troat 2020-G045 Cass A5
usD 33,000 3.17% due 0201353 ] 35,650
5 Mortgage Securities Trovt 20206045 Class XA
[0 1338836 0.6 due D2A15TH . 67,842
KPLY Trusy 201%HIT Class F
s 1,523 4R1% due 11 A5AE S o 51,687
lismmyy hahiag Fusding LUC 201714 Cuass A211
usD B2, TS0 & B5% due 07 fA0a TR 1.0 504,208
P Mongan AMerasive Lo Truse Cass 242
usD 1,580,951 4.10% due D5/25/96™ 0 1,653,270
IF Morgan Chase Commential Mortgage Securties Conp, 2017-FL10 Clas 0
(1.7 3,115 3.56% due DEAISATD oo 1,082
I Morgan Chade Commencis’ Morgage Securtie Trudt 2074-C00 Class Ka
S0 LBESMS0  0.95% due 07155870 o 57,520
IF Miorgan Chase Commencial Mortgage Securties Trust 2018-LAG0 Cas A
(.1 B4555  2U66% due O6F15/9T T ol B4 480
P Morgan Chase Commercial Morgage Securties Trust 2018-WPT Clas FFX
USL &, D0 5 5k due 07 fo5fa3" o1 A2
1P Miorgan Chase Comenencial Mo gage Securiies Trust 2020-LOOP Cass E
o] Hle FTEEH] BB% due 127057387 o1 108 928
JEMER Commancial Moctgage Securivies Trust J005-C28 Clads ©
LD 54,000 4 20F% due DOF15788" ol 4027
1P ER Commercial Mortgage Securites Trust 2005-CH2 Class 0k
usD 1,279,955 1.33% due 1115788 ol 45,762
IPMDH Commencial Mortgage Securties Trust 2009-00RE Oass A4
s 112, 00n 3.06% cue 11713052 o 121,653
JPMDE Carmmensal Morgage Securties Trust 2019-00RE Dass AS
[E.0 ] FREREE ] Bl e 11718152 [FR | 133,702
MASTR Asset Bacoed Securites Trost 2007-HEY Class A3
s 1,508,477 1.88% due 0af25/37" 1.7 1,451,535
whargan Seaniey Bank of America Werriol Lyngh Trust BO14-C1E Clas XA
usD LIBT3 1.00F% due 12f15/87" oo a0,167
Margan Seanley Bank of A=wica Mesrill Lyneh Trose D00 T-C33 Clada XA
. 121 87%
[h 1,510,008 142% due 061550 L8 |

The accompanying notes are an invegral part of these financial state ments.
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February 29, 2020
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
Prancipal % of Nat
Currangy  Amsum Saeusity Dhiseription Asiati Fair Valus
FIMED INCOME SECLRITIES {98.5%] [continued)
UNITED STATES [SaU0%) {oomtimued)
ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES (55 3% {continsed)
Margan Staniey Captal | Truse 2011-C1 Clavs
usD 138,000 5.37% due D915/ 79 1] [1.1:] 141,862
Morgan SEaniey Capital | Trust 2074 UE1T Cas KA
usD 1,761,950 161% due DBS15/F" ol .00
Margan Staniey Capial | Trust D016-UBS12 Class Xa,
L33 LIST688 077 due 12A1500 o1 48,380
Mirgan Staniey Captal | Trust 2017M1 Clans XA
1] G a0 1AK% due DB5/50 m 552
Margan Staniey Capial | Trust 201913 Class AS
usD 51,000 349 due 111552 o1 100,023
Margan Staniey Capgral | Truse 201913 Class XA
usD 1,652 965 0.65% due 11115752 o1 51,752
SARCD DO19-MARE Mectgage Trust Cldd G
usD 125,000 2.72% due 12f15/36™ 0z 173,237
Nt Commencial Morgage Securities Trast 2020-2P8C Clavs
usD 113,000 3,75% due 12115387 ol 115,411
OptionOne Mortgage Loan Trust 20076 Clas 141
(L1 LASTA4D  LEFE due 0712537 16 1,355,987
PRAT Crecit Risk Transfer Trust 2009-2R Class A
(L1 BREAG4T 40P due 0GF27RT R 1.0 850,445
PRPM 20181 LLC Cass Al
LD 552,709 3.75% due D8f25/299 1.2 957,579
PRP 2015-1 LLC Ciass A1
usD 544,835 4.50% due D1 f25f24 70 113 551,576
PRP?A 0194 LLC Class A
usD A75,5%85 3,35% due 112572400 Lo A77.371
PRET 20159-G51 Class A1
UsD 567,534 3.509% due BOf25/2479 o7 575,216
PRPM 20201 LLC Cass A1
[0 553,000 2.98% due 0272572570 oy 556,502
RALI Series 20060513 Trust Class 143
s TI6807 600 cue D9F25/3 6 & 552,901
RALI Sarrpd 2007085 Troan Clads All
usg 1,127,002 1.86% due DBf25/3 71 or G, 188
RASE Sedes. 2007-EMX1 Trust Class 413
usD 874,05 1.83% due 0125737 L] BOL177
Residental At Securtization Trust 2006-A5CE Cas A5
usD LEMEDE  6.00% due 0925036 K] 1,083 573
Rosilyn Portiala Trust 70 T-ROSS Class &
(L 65000 2613 due 061537 P o1 64,987
Rosiyn Portfolo Trust 200 7-ROSS Cass B
LS 65000 291% due 067157987 ol 8, 963
Sk Professional Loan Program 200 7 LLC Cass B
USL S0, D00 3.4 due 11726580 i 524,116
Safi Prafessional Loan Program 200 %€ LLC Cass ©
usD 250,000 4.10% due 11265807 03 267,371
Sali Profeisional Loan Program 200 7-F LWC Cats BIX
LD S0, 000 162% due D1f25/17 113 533,912
Soringheaf Funding Trost 2005 R Class &
usD 250,000 268% due DTA15307 03 251,504
Spnuce Kl Mortgage Loan Trust BOB0-5H1 Oass M1
(1] SOODOK  3IEW due OLF2R/G0T 1 511,022
Sranwnes Mortgage R ceial Trust BO18-IMC2 Class A2
(LT3 TTET  AIE due OFISETE .4 34ik 258
Stanwnod Mortgage Fesicential Trust 20151002 Class A3
s EEFERE] A30% due DOF25 0TS o4 ELTFEN]
Traraisoe Hotel Foiolio Trom 2008 THPT Class B
UsD 153,106 4 85% due 1111340 oz 153,000
URS Cammercial Mortgage Trusn D01 7-CF Claia X4
usD 1,168,706 1.56% due DESLS/E00 o 102,166
LIRS Commaercial Mortgage Trust D01 7-C3 Clans X,
usD 2,794,318 1.11% due DBF15/507 oz 148,036
UBS-Bare s Commercial Mortgage Trost J003-C5 Claas XA
s 1L MTEI 0.55% due DAFIDFEETH i Ak a1
Vantage Data Centers lssuer LLC H008-14 Class A2
s AR00F 407 due OZF1GETT 6 512,510
Werres ﬂ::vbﬂu-‘i'l'{ Loy Trust JORS-NPLE Clans A1
UsD TG, 781 397K due 02F25/89 [E] 121,558

The accompanying notes are an invegral part of these financial state ments.
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February 29, 2020
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
Principal % of Nat
Curreney  Amount  Security Duseription Aty Fair Valug
FIHED INCOME SECURITIES {98.5%] [continued)
UNITED STATES [SaU0%) {oomtimued)
ASIET-BACKED SECLIRIMIES [55, 1%) {continesd]
Visio D092 Trowt s M1
usD 1,575,000 2 26% due 11f25/54719 1.5% [1.1:] 1,557,040
VOLT LKW LLE Class ALA
usD 296,833 3.23% due D1f25/50°™ ['E} 298,147
VEILT LXKV LLC Clads &A1&
USE IO A ue 0225507 05 90,430
Washington Mutual Mortgage Pass-Through Certficates WWALT Series
2007-2 Triat Clasd 181
UL 542 801 700 due 042537 o4 347,218
Washington Mutual AssetBacked Certificates WWABS Series 2006-KE3
Trust Ciass 14
usD 542,70 1.78% due 0825735 1.0 B, 1
Wil Fargo Commencisl Momgage Trat 2010401 Oasa €
usD 140,000 563% due 11f15/8379 0.2 142,235
Wels Fargo Commencial Morgage Trust 20054017 Cans €
usD 58,000 189 due 0215748 ol 9,470
We's Fargo Commencial Momgage Truat 200 5-5054 Class E
USD 153,006 367 due 12F15/087 03 176,597
Wl Fargo Commmencial Momgage Troa 2006033 Cans XA
S 926,863 1.72% due 03115759 o1 67,955
We's Fargo Commencial Momgage Trut 200 7038 Cans KA
LD 543,150 1.06% due DFF15/50°" o1 57,8005
Wels Fargn Commmencia) Momgage Trom 20094054 Cass A4
USL 113,000 2.15% due 121552 ol 123,658
Wels Fargo Commencisl Momgage Troa 2019054 Cass KA
usD 146839 O.54% due 12115057 o 103,372
Wels Fago Mofgape Bacoed Securitien J006-a8 14 Trus Oass 241
UsD 732,653 4 55% due 025736 e 126,678
TOTAL ASSET-BACRED SECLIRITIES 50,489,575
GOVERNMENT BORDS [1.7%]
LS. Traddsy Naté
S0 2,300, 000 1634 cue DAFI52% 1.8 2,404,051
LS Treasery Note
usD U000 2.3H% due D5F15/2% oy 776,836
TOTAL GOVERNMENT BORDS 3170887
FADETGAGE - BACKED SECURIMIES [3L0%)
Fanie Mae Pos!
usD 200000 241% due HOfON25 14 2,115,280
LD 1, 080,y 2.48% due 010032 18 157877
usD 4, 7TRD98 2.506% due 110034 58 4,950,262
usD 2,078,553 2.50% due 120035 5 2,147 508
1] 1681333 3506 gue 0000147 P 1,7 26,048
UsD 2,500,000 2.55% due D1f00/32 ER 2,681,094
0] 1,052 Y B0 due 11700785 1.3 1,144,142
USL T 256 200 due 070047 L] 811,632
usD 1,590,714 1.508% due 010085 24 2,042,155
(fatn) LA EN 400 aue D2/004T 16 066634
Freddie Mac Goi Foo
usLx 2,185,653 B0 due 11700786 16 2,288,035
S0 1335288 3500 cue DRMOLSE6E L6 1,425,050
usor 57 514 5500 due 110085 o4 181,616
Freddie Mac Poo
usD 1,314,885 200 due 070087 1.6 1,374,155
TOTAL MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES 27,721,890
TOTAL UNITED STATES 81,351,352
TOTAL FIMED W COME SECURITIES {Coat LISD 83,5941, 250) H5 555 090
TOTAL INVESTMENTS {Coat UISD 83,541,250) 95.5% [1.1] B5,595,090
CASH AND OTHER ASSETS IN EXCESS OF LIABILITIES 11 98750
NET ASSETS. 100.0% s 86,573,840

The accompanying notes are an invegral part of these financial state ments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS (continued)
February 29, 2020

{Expressed in United States Dollar)

{11 Fioating Rate as of February 29, 2020,

{2) 1844 Securty - Security exempt Pom egatration under 1444 of the Securites At of 1933 These wecurties may Be resold in
Transact ons eeempt from negiatraton, Tyacaly 1o gualifed instiutiona’ buyers. Uniess otserwise indicated, These securities are mat
e eed 0o B ilfguid,

{31 Srep Rare as of Febroasy B, HIHE

{a4) Variabe Rate as of Februasy 29, 2020

1Y Monthly Distribution Class Forward Forelgn Curmency Exchange Contracis

NatUnrealized

Notional  Settlement National Unseslized Unrealized  Appricstion/

Buy _ Counterparty Amount Date Sl Amaunt Appreciation  {Depredation)  {Depredation)
IPY  Broen Brodhers Barriman & Co. 45,154 04302020 LD 4101 sD 10 s = WED i
IFY  CINIFE FLAREAEE D] B0 020 LD [ X2 ¥ 0] 154815 - 13487
LSO  CITIPE 105,258 09/30/ 2020 P (115706T3] = [2,176] {2176

LS00 154,885 LS [2,176] WSD 152 708

1 Semi-Arnual Distribution Class Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts

Hit Unraalized

Hational Sattlarnant National Urriali i Unrealized  Appracistion)

Bury  Counterparty Armount Date Sall Arownt Appriciation  (Depreciation)  (Depreciation)
1Y CImEe 4,050,840, 718 04302020 LD {37,128853) UED Eh4 10 LD - usD BAAHL0
Y MR 44508310 04730020 LS {403, 160] 10,002 - 10,102
USD  CITIFE SIE075 0430y 2020 1P {56:950,159) - {10, 710 {10,710

L=l Bha 912 LPADF  {10,710)  UsD B34 200

Currency legend
e Inpasse Yen
LD U [enlar

The accompanying notes are an invegral part of these financial state ments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

ORGAMNIZATION

Doubleline Total Return Fund (the “Fund”) ks a series tust of the Nikko AM Offshore Funds, an open-ended unit trust
established by a supplemental trust deed dated February 8, 2017 [the “Supplemental Trust Deed™), under the laws of the
Cayman Islands. Nikko AM Offshore Funds was established by a master trust deed dated October 15, 2012 (the “Master
Trust Deed”), under the laws of the Cayman Islands and is licensed with the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority pursuant
to section 4(1){a} of the Mutual Funds Law (2009 Revision). The Fund commenced operations on March 30, 2017,

The Fund's assets are managed on a day to day basis by Mikko AM Global Cayman Limited {the “Manager”). The Manaper
delegates imvestment management duties to Nikko Asset Management o, Ltd., [the “Investment Manager”), The
Investment banager delegates investment management duties to Doubleline Capital L®, (the “Sub-Investment Manager”).
The admintstration of the Fund is delegated to Brown Brothers Hardiman & Co, [the “Custodian™ and “Sub-Administrator”),
a limited partnership organized under the laws of the State of New Yorik,

The investrment abjective of the Fund is to achieve a mid ta long term total return through income and capital appreciation,
Under normal circumstances, the Series Trust shall invest ower 509 of its net assets in residential and commarcial
martgage-backed securities, sctively allocated between agency and non-agency Securities.

These investments may include morgage-backed securites of any maturity of type, including those guaranteed by, or
secured by collateral that is guaranteed by, the United States Government, its agencies, instrumentalies. or sponsoned
corparations, and privately issued mortgage-backed securities rated at the time of purchase Aa3 or higher by Moody's or
A= ar higher by S&P or of an equivalent rating by any other nationally recognized statistical rating erganization ["NRSRO")
that has been recognized by the LS. Securites and Exchange Commission or unrated securities that are determined by the
Investmant Manager or its delegates to be of comparable quality. These investmients also intlude, among othars, U.S.
Government mortgage pass-through securities, collateralized momgage obligations, multiclass pass-through securities,
private mortgage passthrough securities,

The Series Trust may also invest in short term investments, such as notes issved by US. Governmant agencies, and bonds,
debt securities and other fed income instruments issued by .S, Governmental or private-sector entities, or other asset-
backed obligations, collateralized loan obligations, and obligations of the U5 Government and its agencies,
instrurnentalitkes and spansored corporations.

The Series Trust may invest in bonds af any eredit quality, including thase that are at the tme af investment unrated or
rated B+ or lower by S&F or Bal or lower by Moody's or of an equivalent rating by any other NRSRO, Bonds and finad
Income instruments rated below Evestrnent grade, or such instruments that are unrated and determined by the
Investment banager or its delegates to be of comparable quality, are high yield, high risk bonds, commaenly known as ‘junk
bands’. The Series Trust may invest up to a third of its net assets in junk bonds, bank lbans and assignrments that are either
rated below investment grade or are unrated but determined by the Investment Manager or its delegates to be of
comparable quality, and credit default swaps of companies in the high yield universe,

The Series Trust may (nvest a portion of its net assets in inverse floater securitees and interest-only and principal-only
securities.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, CIBC Bank and Trust Company [Cayman)
Limited (the “Trustee” and the “Administrator”) is named as Trustee of the Fund.

The Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF) Margan Stanley FB Securities Co., Ltd to act as Agent Company [the “Agent
Company”) and the Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF) Morgan Stanley P8 Securities Co., Ltd and SMEBC Trust Bank Ltd, to
act as Distributors (the “Distributors”) of Units in Japan.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Fund is an Investment Company that follows the accounting and reporting guidance in FASB Accounting Standards
Codification 948,

Use of Estimates

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
thie United States of America [0S GAAPY). The preparation of financial staterments in accordance with LS. GAAP requires
the Fund's management to make estimates and assumptians that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results, includ ing the uktimate amount realized upon the sale of
fair valued investments, could differ from those estimates and such differences may be significant.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Basis of Accounting

Security and contractual wransactions are recorded on a trade/contract-date basis. Interest income & recorded on an
effective yield basis, net of any applicable withholding tax Interest expense and other expenses are recorded on an accrual
basis. Realized gains and losses from security transactions are computed on the basks of the average cost of the securities
wold or coversd. Changes in the valeation of investments are recorded in the Statement of Operations as unrealized
appreciation or depreciation.

Valwation of Investments

Bands and other debt securities, including restricted securities (other than short-term obligations but including lsted
Issues) are fair valued at thebr last sale price in the principal market in which such securities are normally traded, on the
basis af valuations furnished by a pricing serviee, use of which has been approved by the |nvestment Manager, of if no sale
has occurred, the bid price on the valuation date as provided by brokers who are market makers in the securities. All debt
securities with less than 12 months to maturity date, in principle shall be Tair valued wsing an amortized cost effected by an
effective yield accumulated/amortization method to their maturity date with adjustments based on companson with
market prices as required.

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value measurements and discosures under ULS. GAAP, the Fumd
discloses the fair value of its investmenits in a hiararchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques wsed to measure
the fair walue. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to valuations based upon unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or labilities [Level 1 measwrernent) and the lowest priority to valuations based wpon unobservable
inputs that are significant bo the valuation [Level 3 measurements). The guidance establishes three levels of the fair value
hierarchy as follows:

*  Liwel 1 - Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical investments that the Fund
has the ability to access at the measurement dabe;

#  Livel 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are sgnificant and observable for the astet of lability sither
directly or indirectly, Including Inputs in markets that are not considered to be acthve;

*  Level 3 - Inputs that are significant and unobservable

Inputs are ubed in applying the various valuation techniques and broadhy refer to the ptions that market panticipants
use to make valuation decislons, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include price information, specific and broad
credit data, liquidity statistics, and ather factors. A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy & based upon
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. However, the determination of what
constitites “obiarvable” requires significant judgment by the Investrment Manager. The [nvestrent Manager condidirs
observable data to ke market data which is readily available, regularly d stributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not
proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively invelved in the rebevant market. The categarization af a
firancial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessanily
cormespand to the Investmaent Manager's perceived risk of that instrument,

Investments whose values are based on the guoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within Level 1,
would include actively traded equities, certain LS. government and sowerelgn obligations, and certain asset-backed
securities and caollateralized mortgage obligations, The Investment Manager would not adjust the quoted price for such
Instruments, ewen In situations where the Fund held a large position and a sale could reasonably impact the quated price.

Investmants that trade in markets that are not considiered to be active, but are valued based on quoted market prices,
dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2, These include
investmaent-grade debt securities, short-term investments and forward foreign currency exchange contracts and may also
include certain asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations, As Lewel 2 investments include positions
that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illiquidity and/for nan-transferability, which are generally based on available market information.

97/199



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Valwation of Investments fcontinuved)

Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they would trade infrequently, Level 3
Instrurments would include certain asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations. As observable prices are
not avallable for those securities, the Fund would use valuation techniques to derive the fair value.

The imputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the rsk associated with investing
in those securities.

The fallowing table presents the financial instruments carried on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption and by
level within the valuation hierarchy as of February 29, 2020. Further dassifications of the financial instruments are
prisented in the Portfolio of Investments. There were no movements between bevels during the year,

Agsets at Fair Value Fair Value at
Level 1 Lival 2 Loval 3 February 29, 2020
Faed Incamie sD - Ll B5, 595, 050 s - LISD 55,595,050
Farwand Feregn Catrendy
Exchange Conlracts = 1019707 = 1,019,797
Total ush = UsD B G614 887 usc = use 6,614,887
Lisbilities ot Fair Value Fair Value g
Livel 1 Lisvirl 2 Livid 3 Fiebruary 29, 320
Forward Forelgn Carrency
Exchange Contracts 5D - W50 11,556 50 = LI5S0 12EHE
Tedal Usp = UsD 11 5R6 UsD = UsD 11586
Foreign Currency Transiation

Assets and liabilities held in currencies other than United States Dollar (“USD" or the “Functional Currency®) are translated
to the Functional Currency at the rate of exchange prevailing at the financial statement date. Income and expenses are
translated at the rate of exchange prevalling at the date on which the income or expense is Incurred. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses arising on foreign currency transactions are included in the Statement of Operations in the
period in which they occur.

The Fund does mot isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in forelgn exchange rates on
imvestmants from the fluctuations arising from changes in market prices of securities held, Such fluctuations are indudad
with the net realized and unrealized gain or loss from investmenits.

Incame Taxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman 1slands, there are no incomes, withholding, capital gains or other taxes payable by
the Fund. In certain jurisdictions other than the Cayman Islands, foreign taxes may be withheld at source on dividends and
interes received by the Fund, Capital gains defived by the Fund in such jurisdictions generally will be eéxempt from foreign
Income ar withholding taxes at source. The Fund intends to conduct its affairs such that it willl not be subject to Income tax
in any jurisdiction. As a reswlt, no provision for income taxes has been made in the financial statements. Unitholders may
be taxed on their propoartonate share of the Fund's tax basks income based on thelr indvidual circumstances.

The Fund follows the authoritative guidance on accounting for and disdlesure of uncertainty in tax positsons (Financial
Accounting Standards Board [“FASE") - Accounting Standards Codification 740}, which requires the Manager to determine
whether a tax position of the Fund is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing
authority, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position,
For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized In the financial statements is
reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized wpon ultimate settlemant
with the relevant taxing authority. The Manager has determined that there Is minimal or no effect on the financial
statements being under this authortative guidance,

Fonward Fareign Currency Exchange Contracts

Thee Fund may enter into forward foreign currency exchange contracts 1o hedge against foreign currency exchange rate
risks on all or a portion of nonUSD denominated investments or for efficient portfolio management purposes. When
entering into a forward foreign currency exchange contract, the Fund agrees to receive or deliver a fised quantity of
foreign currancy for an agreed-upan price on an agread future date, These contracts are valued daily, and the Fund's nat
equity therein, representing unrealized appreciation/[depreciation] on the contracts as measured by the difference
between the farward foreign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry into the contracts and the forward rates at the
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Fonward Forelgn Currency Exchonge Contracts fcontinued)
reporting date, is included in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are induded
in the Statement of Operations,

These instruments imvalve market risk, eredit risk, or both kinds of risks, in excess of the amount recognized in the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities. Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the terms of their
contracts and from movement in curfency and tecurities values and interest rates. In addition to the Class level hedging,
the Fund had realized loss of USD 213 on 16 forward foreign currency exchange contracts during the year with an average
notianal of USD 39,669 and an sverage berm Lo maturity of 10 days. The Fund had net realized boss of USD 175,497 on 42
forward foreign currency exchange contracts held at the JFY Monthly Distribution Class Hedped level during the year with
an average notional of USD 4,603,462 and an average term to maturity of 28 days. The Fund also had realined loss of USD
B79,116 on 40 forward foreign currency exchange contracts held at the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Hedged level
during the year with an average notional of USD 23,127,234 and an average term to maturity of 29 days,

Cosh ond Foreign Currency
Cash and forelgn currency comprises all currency held with Brown Braothers Harriman & Co., and overnight and other shart
term placements with ather financial institutions.

UNITS

The nit assets of the Fund are divided into JPY Maonthly Distribution Class Units, JPY Sermi-Annual Distribution Class Units,
USD Menthly Distributhon Class Units and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units. The Units are denominated in United
Seated Dollar and lapanese Yen. JPY Monthly Distribution Class Units, JPY Semi-Annusl Distribution Class Units, USD
Maonthly Distribution Class Units and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units are available to an eligible investor who &
ANy perLon, corparation of entity which & not (i) a citizen of resident of the ULS., a partnership ofganized of existing in the
U5, or any corporation, trust or other entity organized under the laws of or extsting in the US; (8} person or entity resident
of domiciled in the Cayman Blands (excluding ary object of a charitable trust or power of an exempted of non-fedident
Cayman klands company); [ill] unable to subscribe for or hald Units without violating applicable laws, or () a custodian,
nomines, or trustes for any person, corporation or entity described in (i) to i) abowe.

The Manager may determineg to issue one or mare classes of Units of the Fund without prior notice to or written consent of
the Unitholders,

All of the net assets attributable to JPY Monthly Distribution Class Units, J#Y Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units Class,
UISD Monthby Distribution Class Units and USD Semi-Annwal Distribution Class Units, are held by two Uinitholders.

1P Monthly JEY Serni-Annual LD Manthly  USD Semi-Annual

o Class  Distribution Oass  Distribution Class  Distributtion Class Tetal Fured
Ba'ansie Al Fobewany 28, 2009 UsSD EA26936 USD 36935001 WUSD Z2TEES565 USD 23351368 USD FLATSETD
Subseriptions during the year 671 T 567 626,045 21,054,737 23,394,020
Redemptions duting the year {3,037,545) {2,222, 448} {99T.618) {7.220,066) (13,477,687)
Distrioutions (96, 1.26) {309,101 {57.935) [263,722) {7 6,B87)
Ket increme imnet assets resulting
froen operatons 574,514 2,586,563 154,039 2,153 418 5,508,534

Ket Assets at Febraary 29, 2020 UsDr  GEGDASD  USD AR 110582 USD  R5JT093  USD 39075715 USD B6.5T3.H40

Kumber af Un'ts in ssue at

Fearmey 28, 2019 95,124 425,719 250,020 21,322,763 3,126,626
Lnits insued dusing the yesr 11,138 8077 1,310 2018963 2,100 ARR
Units redeermiod during the yeae {34,347 [24,553) (5 361} {656 833} {B56, 06 3)
Numiser af Units in Ssue at

Fetirssy 29, 2020 74,915 419,243 242,569 3,642 534 4,370,021

Kt Asset Value per Unitat
Fergaty 29, 2020 usE 2156 USD 9312 Wb 140 UsE .73

Suhseriptions for Units

JFY Monthly Distribution Class Units and JFY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units were first issued at an initial issue price
af IPY 10,000 per Unit. The minimurm initial subscription for JPY Monthly Distribution Class Units and JPY Semi-Annual
Distribution Class Units per subscriber is 1 Unit or more, and in muBiples of 1 Units thereafter,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

UINITS [eontinued)

Swbseriptions for Uait (continued)

LISD Monthby Distribution Class Units and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units were first Bsved at an initial issue price
of USD 10,00 per Unit. The minimum initial subscription for USD Manthly Distribution Class Units and USD Semi-Annual
Distribution Class Units per subscriber is 10 Units or more, and in multiples of 1 Unit thereafter,

The Manager may waive or change the minimum initial and additional subscription amounts et forth abowe in its sole
discretion from time to time,

Unit Redemptions

The Fund recognizes redemptions in accordance with the authoritative guidance on distinguishing liabilities from equity,
Redemptions, whether expressed as United States Dollar, Japanese Yen or Units, are recognized as liabikties when each of
the Japanese Yan and United 5tates Dollar Unit amownts requested in the redemption notice becomaes fixed, which
renerally may occur either at the time of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a fiscal year, depending on the
nature of the request. As a result, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but based upon year end net assets are
reflected as redemptions payable at February 29, 2020, There were USD 126,955 and JPY nil of redemptions payable as at
February 29, 2020 induded as Payable for Units redeemed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

Repurchose af Uinits
Units may be repurchased at the option of Unitholders on each Repurchase Day,

Unitholders wishing to have Units repurchased must send a completed Repurchase Notice to the Distributors so as to be
received by the Distributors ne later than 3200 p.m. [Tokyo time) on the relevant Repurchase Day. The Distributors will
send the completed Repurchase Motices to the Sub-Administrater by no later than 6:00 p.m. (Tekyo time) on the relevant
Riepurchase Day or by such other time as the Sub-Administrator may in any particular case determine,

If the relevant Repurchase Notice is not received by the Sub-Administrator by the relevant time, the Repurchase Notice will
be held over until the nest following Repurchase Day after the Repurchase Notice is received and Units will then be
redeamed at the relevant repurchase price applicable on that Repurchase Day.

A Repurchase Notice, once given, is irrevocable.

Compuilsory Redemption

I the ewent that the Trustee or the Manager shall determine that any Units of any class of a Series Trust ane being held by
or for the benefit of a person who & not an Eligible Investor for such Seried Trust or that such holding would cause the
Trust ar the Series Trust to be reguired to register, be subject to tax or violate the laws of any jurisdiction, or if the Trustee
of the Manager has fiadon to doubt the bgitimacy of the source of monies usid to fund the subscription of purchase of
such Units, or for whatever reason (which may not be disclosed by the Trustee or the Manager to Unithalders) that the
Trustie of the Manager considers appropriatic at its absolute discretion having regard to the interests of the Unitholders of
the relevant Class or the Unithalders of the Series Trust as a whole, then the Manager, after consultation with the Trustee,
may direct the holder thereof to sell (subject to the provisions described below in the section headed “Transfer of Units®)
such Units within 10 days and provide to the Trustee and the Manager evidence of such sale, falling which the Manager
may risdeem such Units,

Termination of the Fund
Upon termination, the Manager will realize all the assets of the Fund, and after paying out or retaining adequate pravision
far all Eabilities properly payable and retaining provision for the costs of the termination, the Trustee shall distribute the
procesds of that realization to the Unithalders proportionately to their respective interests in the Fund as of the date of
termination of the Fund.

Distributions to Lnitholders

The Manager may, from time to time, in its sole discretion, dedare distributions from September 2017, Distribution will be
declared on each Dstribution Record Date and caleulated on each Ex-Distribution Date. Distribution Periad is a period
commencing from the calendar day following the preceding Distribution Record Date and ending on and including the
Distribution Record Date. The distributions will be paid on the relevant Distribution Payment Date, provided that such
amount (if any} declared with respect to the relevant Class of Units in respect of the applicable Distribution Period shall
only be paid out of the Series Trust's net income, realized and unrealized capital gains and arny distributable funds of the
Series Trust attributable to such Class of Units as determined by the Manager.

100/199



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

UNITS [eortinued)

Distribwtions ta Unitholders fcantinued)

The declaration of distributions to Unithalders reduces the Class Level Net Asset Value per Unit withaut any corresponding
change in the number of Class Level Units per Unitholder, This results in a Unithalder's overall investment in the Fund
being rediced. In addition, any distributions during a period which are in excess of the Fund®s net increase in net assets
resulting from operations results in a portion of the distribution being return of capitall

The amaunt of distributions, if any, will be determined by the Manager in its role discretion, and no representation or
puarantes is made that a distribution will be made in respect of each or ary Distribution Period.

Capitaliration

The Net Asset Value per Unit is cabeulated for each Dealing Day (each Valuation Day, or such other day of days as the
Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust), by dividing the difference in value between the
Fund's assets and liabilities (including accrued fees and expenses of the Fund) by the number of Units outstanding.

Thie Trust Deed stipulaties that the number of Units to be issued in the Fund shall be unlimited as the Manager shall
determine and shall be without par value.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accounting Standard Codification (ASC) 815-10-50 requires dsclosures about derivative instrumants and hedging activities,
It requires that the Fund disclose: a) how and why an entity uses derssative instruments, b) how derivative instruoments and
related hedged items are accounted for and ) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s
financial pasition, financial perfarmance and cash flaws,

The Fund transacts forward derivative instruments primarily for hedging purposes with each instrument’s primary risk
expasure being foreign exchange risk. The forward foreign currency exchange contracts held by the Fund do nat qualify as
hedges for accounting purposes under the requirements of ASC 815, The fair value of these dervative instruments is
included in the Statement of Adsets and Liabilities with changes in fair value reflected as realized gaina/[losses) of nét
change in unrealized appreciation/[depreciation] on derivatives within the Statement of Operations (Nabe 2).

The Fund may enter into an International Swaps and Derivative Associathon, Inc. Master Agreement [TSDA Master
Agreement”} with its counterparties in order to mitigate counterparty risk. The ISDA Master Agreement & typically
negotiated by the Fund and its counterparties, containing the bi-lateral terms and conditions for all subsequent derivative
transactions. The ISDA Master Agreement allows for the netting of all amounts owed to or due fram counterparty into a
single net payment if a credit event or default should occur.

At February 29, 2020 the Fund had entered into the following derivathve assets by counterparty net of amounts avallable
for affset under a Master Netting greement [“MNA®) and net of any collateral received by the Fund:

Dhevivative Asbets Derivative: Mon-tath Cash Het Amount of
Counte rparty Subject to a MNA  Available for Offset Collateral Received Collateral Received Cwerivative Asets’
Broaen Brothers Mariman & Co. USD 10 Ush - LS - usor ~ LS 10
Citiban PB 1,019, 787 {12 Bb) - - 1,015, 3411
Totsl usp 1,009,797 USD | 12886} USD usp U 5,006,911

AR Febrwary 29, 2020 the Fund had entered into the following derivative liabilities by counterparty net of amounts available
for offset under a MMA and net of any collateral pledged by the Fund:

[+ v Dirivati Hor-cash Cash Het Amount of
Cournberparty Liabsilities Available for Offset Collateral Pledged Collateral Mledged  Derivative
Subject 1o s MNA Limbilitings *
Citiganc PB usp 12,886 USD {12,886} USD —usD —usp -
Total uso 12 886 S0 {12,846} USD — S0 —usD -
VMt i g (R E ST o fpiabde lisin 1he Ty i e it o dedaide.
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued)

At February 29, 2020 the Fund had entered into the following derivatives:

Asie! Darivatives Linkility Derivativas
Dirisatives Statarnant Statarant
Hat Accounted for a5 of Asdats and of Assats and
ledging Instraments Lishilitiet Location Liahilities Location Fair Value

Forward Boreign currency  Unnealiced appreciation

exchange contracs on forward forelgn
{Curremcy Risk) currency exchange
conkracts

Unrealiced depreciation

on forward foregn

currency exchange [154:] {12, B8a)
contracts

The ellect of derivative instruments on the Statement of Operations for the year ended February 29, 2020:

Loeation, of Raralirid Appreciatian or
Derivatives Not Acoounted Gair or [Loss) Gaain or {Loss) | Depreciation) on
far as Hedging Instrumants on Derivatives on Derivatives Derivativas

et realized losses on forward foregn

Forward foreign currency currency exchange contracts;

exchange conkracts change inwnrealized appeeciation

{Curremncy Risk] {deprecation) an forward lorelgn curmency . USH {1054 826] USD 1,209 SES
exchange contracts

MAMNAGEMENT FEES

Thie Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sefes Trust A management fee of a total up to 0UEE% per annum
[CL03% per annum in respect of fee for the Manager, 0.25% per annum of the Net Asset Valwe up to USD 400 million and
0.22% per annum of the Net Avet Value over USD 400 million in respect of fee for the Investment Manager, and 0.40% pér
annum of the Net Asset Value up to USD 400 million and §.35% per annum of the MNet Asset Value over LISD 400 million in
respect of fee for the Sub-lnvestrent Manager) of the Net Asset Value sccrued on, and calculated as at, @ach Valuation
Day and payable monthly in arrears, In addition, the Manager is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the assets of the
Series Trust for any expenses incurred by it in the proper performance of its powers and duties as permitted under the
Master Trust Deed. During the year ended February 29, 2020, the Manager earned fees of USD 512,288, of which USD
45,595 it atill ourstanding as of February 29, 2020,

Thie Manager will pay thi fees of the Investrment Manager out of it fees. The Investment Manages will be responsible for
paying the fees of the Sub-investment Manager and any of the Investrent Manapger's delegates or other parties appainted
by the Investrent Manager to perform its functions in respect of the Series Trust

CUSTOMAN AND SUB-ADMIMISTRATOR'S FEES

The Fumd has a custody and accounting agreéement with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (the “Custedian” and “Sub-
Administrator”) for which the Custodian receives a fee calculated and paid monthly based on total assets and transaction
v lurme.

The Custodian and Sub-Adrministrator is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust an administration fee
[including transfer agent fee) calculated based on the Met Asset Value as at each Valuation Day at the following annual
rate:

- 0.07% up o [and including) USD 250 million;

- 0065 up to [and including) LISD 500 million;

- 0.05% over LISD 500 millien,

Such adminkstration fee ks payable monthly in arrears, and subject to the minimum annual fee of LUSD 60,000, The Sub-
Adrministrator is alko entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust fees for currency administration and execution
services at the rate of 0,05% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Unit Class, subject to the minimum annual
few of USD 50,000, In addition, the Custodian and Sub-Administrator is also entitled to receive customary safekeeping fees
and transaction charges. All out-of-pocket expenses of the Custodian and Sub-Administrator shall also be borne by the
Series Trust, During the year ended February 29, 2020, the Custodian earned fees of USD 99,038, of which USD 47,530 is
still outstanding as of February 29, 2020,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

TRUSTEE FEES

The Trustee is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a combined fee at the rate of 0.015% per annum of
the Net Asset Value accrued on, and caboulated as at each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears, subject to a
minémum annueal fee of USD 15,000, During the year ended February 249, 2020, the Trustee earned fees of USD 15,043, of
which USD 3,847 is still outstanding as of February 29, 2020

AGENT COMPANY'S FEES

The Agent Company is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.02% per annum of the
Met Asset Value accrued on, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. Dwring the year
ended February 29, 2020, the Agent earned fiees of USD 15,067, of which USD 2,770 is still outstanding as of February 29,
2020,

DISTRIBUTION FEES

The Distributors are entitled to receive out of the assets of the Serkes Trust a fee at the rate of 0.60% per annurn of the Net
Asset Value accrued on, and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. During the year ended
February 29, 2020, the Distributors earned fees of USD 452,019, of which USD 81,530 Is still outstanding as of February 29,
2020,

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

The costs and expenses in connection with the establishment of the Series Trust and the offering of the Units, together
with the establishment of the Trust, including the costs and expenses of preparing and printing any prospectus of
explanatory brochures reguired, were estimated at launch to amount to approsimately USD 140,000, Such costs and
expenses will be amortised within the first five (5] financial years of the Series Trust unless the Trustee decides that some
other mathod shall be applied. The Administrator receives USD 1,500 per annum for FATCA § CRS compliance services,

FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund’s activities expase i to a varsety of financial risks: market risk (including price nsk, interest rate risk, and currency
risk), eredit risk and liquidity risk.

Market Risk
All irvestments presant a risk of loss of capital The Investment Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of
securities and other financial instruments.

The Fund's investmant management procedd is deseribed in Nate 1. The primary determinant of the Fund®s ability to mesat
Its objective of mid to long term capital appreciatien while earning income s dependent on the perfarmance of the
irvestment in the residential and commancial morgage-backed securities.

The values of the Fund's investments are affected by a number of factors, including but nat limited to, changes in the wider
econamy, financial and currency markets, forelgn currency exchange rates, interest rate movements and credit ratings of
debt issuers, The Fund enters into forward contracts which to varying degrees represent a market risk in excess of the
amount reflected on the Fund’s Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The notienal amount of the contract represents the
extent of the Fund’s participation in these financial instruments. Market risks associated with such contracts arise due to
the possible movements in ferelgn currency exchange rates underlying these instruments.

Other market and credit risks include the possibility that there may be an illiquid market for the contracts, that the change
in the value of the contract may not directly correlate with changes in the value of the underlying currencies or that the
counterparty to a forward contract defaults on its obligation to perform under the terms of the contract. The Fund's
expasure o loss due to counterparty non-performance on open futures, forwards, swap and options contracts is limited to
the unrealized appreciation inherent in such financial instruments which are recognized in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities.

Asset-backed securities investment risk

Assiet-backed securities inwestrment have the risk that borrawers may default on the obligations that underdie the asset-
backed security and that, during periods of falling interest rates, asset-backed securities may be called or prepaid, which
may riesult i the Series Trust having to reinvest proceeds in other investments at 2 lower interest rate, and the risk that
the impairment of the value of the collateral underlying a security in which the Series Trust invests [dus, for example, to
non-paymient of loans) will result in a reduction in the value of the security.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continued)

Concentration risk

The Series Trust imeests substantially in bonds issued by U5 agencies in accordance with its principal investment
strategles. Because such securities are bsued by a limited number of government agenches, any actual or potential
disruption to those agencies could present a risk to the Seres Trust. Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which are other
Rovemment-sponsored Issuers of mortgage-back securities similar to those guaranteed by Ginnle Mae, suffered such a
disruption in the mortgage crisis of 2007 - 2008 and were placed under federal conservatarship at that time. Ginnie Mae
securities, unlike those of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, are backed by the full faith and credit of the .5, government and
are subject to the risks of U5, government securities. Similar to other issuars, changes to the finandal condition or credit
rating of the U.5. government may cause the value of the Series Trust's exposure to U5, agencies securities to decline,

Maontgage-backed securities risk

Mortgage-backed securities represent interests in “pools” of mortgages and are subject to credit, interest rate,
prepayment and extension risk. Mortgage-backed securities react differently to changes in interest rates than other bonds
and the prices of mortgage-backed securities may reflect adverse economic and market conditions. Small movemants in
interest rates (bath increases and decreases) may quickly and significantly reduce the value of certain montgage-backed
securities. Default or bankruptcy of a counterparty to a to-be-announced transaction would expose the Series Trust to
possible loss.

Mortgage-reloted and Other Asset-Backed Securities risk

Carrtain Funds may invest in mortgage-relatisd and other acset-backed securities that directly or indirectly represent a
participation in, or are secured by and payable from, kans on real property. Mortgage-related securities are created from
pools of residential or commercial mortgage keans, inchuding mortgage laans made by savings and loan institutions,
martgage bankers, commercial banks and others. These securities provide a monthly payment which consists of bath
interest and principal. Interest may be determined by fived or adjustable rates. The rate of prepayments on underlying
martgages will affect the price and volatibty of a mortgage-related security, and may have the effect of shortening or
extending the effective duration of the secwrity relathee to what was anticipated at the time of purchase. The timely
payment of principal and interest of certain mortgage-related securities is guaranteed with the full faith and credit of the
US, Govemment, Pools oeated and guarantesd by non-governmental issuers, including government-spensoned
cofparations, may be supported by various forms of insurance of guarantees, but there can be no assurance that private
Insurers gr guarantors can meet their obligatiens under the insurance poficles or guarantee arrangements. Many of the
risks of investing In mortgage-related securities secured by commercial mortgage loans reflect the effects of local and
other economic conditions. on real estate markets, the ability of tenants to make kease payments, and the ability of a
property bo atract and retain tenants.

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Fund would incur If the counterparties or issuers of debt securities falled
to perform pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Fund, For exchange-traded contracts, the exchange acts as the
counterparty to specific transactions and, therefore, bears the risk of delivery to and from counterparties of specific
positions, The Fund’s management does not consider that credit risk related to open derivative contracts will have material
adverse effect an the financial candition of the Fund.

Although the Manager monitors the Custodian and believes it to be an appropriate custodian, there k& no guarantee that
this ar any custodian that the Fund may wse from time to time, will not become insohent, which could lead to losses for
the Fund,

‘While bath the L5, Bankruptcy Code and the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect customer property
in the event of a failure, insalvency or liguidation of an institution, there is no certainty that, in the event of a failure of an
Institution that has custody of Fund assets, the Fund would not incur lesses due to its assets being unavailable for a period
of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both, Because all of the Fund's cash is in custody with a singhe
institution, such losses could be significant and could materially impair the ability of the Fund to achieve its investment
objective. The Fund & subject to credit risk to the extent that this institution may be unable to fulfill its obligations to repay
amounts owed,

Liquidity Risk
Inyvestors shauld be aware that the value of Units might fall as wiell as rise. Investmant in the Fund invohoes a degree of risk;
there can be no assurance that the Fund’s investment objective will be achieved,

The Fund ks exposed to daily repurchase of its Units but management believes that the Fund has sufficient resources to
maet the prissent and foreseeable needs of its business operations and, if necessary, the liquidity to fund repurchases and
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continued)
Liguidity Risk fcontinued)

acheve a market position appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position s monitored continually by
managemaent to ensure that the Fund has the ability to meet its obligations.

Cwrrency Risk

The Fund holds monetary and non-monetary assets and incurs monetary and non-monetary liabilities denominated in
currencies other than USD, the Functional Currency, It is therefore exposed to currency risk, as the value of the assets and
liakiliies denominated in other currencies (“non-US0") will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. The Fund may
enter into currency hedging transactions from time to time in order to limit its exposure to currency risk,

The investment manager monitars the Fund's currency exposure on a daily basis.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGEMCIES

In the narmal course of business, the Trustee on behall of the Fund may enter inbo contracts that contain a variety of
representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications. The general indemnifications apply not only
to the extent such representations and warranties are untrue but abo may cover third parties such as the Fund's
Administrator, Auditor or Investmient Manager for claims related to the services performed for the Fund, The Trustes's
maximum exposure under any such arrangements is unknown, a5 exposure only arises to the extent future claims that
have not yet accurried are made againit the Trusbee, However, based on experience, the Trustes expects the risk of less to
be remate.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management performed a subsequent events review up to June 26, 2020 which is the date the financial statements were
availabhi to be issued.

Effectivee March 1, 2020 through June 26, 2020, there were subscriptions of USD 94,307 in respect of JFY Monthly
Distribution Class and there were subseriptions of USD 1,690 in respect of JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class, there were
subscriptions of USD 1,054,815 in respect of USD Monthly Distribution Class, there were subscriptions of USD 100,915 in
respect of USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class.

Effective March 1, 2020 through June 26, 2020, there were redemptions of USD 1,630,294 in respect of IFY Monthly
Distribution Class and there were redemptions of USD 745,021 in respect of JFY Semi-Annual Distribution Class, there were
redemnption af USD 460,675 in respect of USD Monthly Distribution Class, there were redemptions of WSD 662,193 in
respect of USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class,

There were distributions of USD 23,667 in respect of JFY Monthly Distribution Class. There were distributions of LISD
153,869 in respect of JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class, There were distributions of USD 23,250 in respect of LSD
Monthly Distribution Class. There were distributions of USD 217,396 in respect of USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class.
COVID-19

On March 11, 2020 the World Health Organization dedared the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID -197) a pandemic.
Uncertainty remains around (i) the length of the disruption, and (i) the impact of the COVID-19 on global markets.

There are no ather significant events to repoart as they relate tothe Fund.
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2019 28
2019 28
71,975,547 70,092,882 7,551,807
1,652,066 177,994
81,047 8,732
213,813 23,036
2,250 242
72,042,058 7,761,811
205,328 22,122
136,999 14,760
70,297 7,574
38,663 4,166
37,770 4,069
24,513 2,641
16,277 1,754
3,805 410
2,356 254
2,168 234
28,012 3,018
566,188 61,001
71,475,870 7,700,810
73,412,749 7,909,490
2,338,552 251,956
(2,189,684) (235,917)
(2,085,747) (224,718)
71,475,870 7,700,810
938,086,516
98,124 9,560
4,111,604,311
425,719 9,658
2,762,565
280,020 9.87 1,063
23,351,368
2,322,763 10.05 1,083
107.74
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2019 28

3,551,509 382,640
3,551,509 382,640
543,085 58,512
479,192 51,628
147,064 15,845
17,100 1,842
15,973 1,721
15,001 1,616
13,884 1,496
9,550 1,029
85,338 9,194
1,326,187 142,883
2,225,322 239,756
(445, 859) (48,037)
(3,306, 495) (356,242)
(3,752,354) (404,279)
6,524 703
(236,249) (25,453)
(229,725) (24,751)
(3,982,079) (429,029)
(1,756,757) (189,273)

107.74
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2019 28

2,225,322 239,756
(3,752,354) (404,279)
(229,725) (24,751)
(1,756,757) (189,273)
(120,382) (12,970)
(333,450) (35,926)
(125,331) (13,503)
(340,121) (36,645)
(919,284) (99,044)
13,275 1,138,155 122,625
1,246 113,491 12,228
61,776 608,589 65,569
134,461 1,329,074 143,194
50,556 (4,439,202) (478,280)
50,716 (4,481,341) (482,820)
661,560 (6,502,899) (700, 622)
929,636 (9,209,212) (992,201)
(21,443,345) (2,310,306)
(24,119,386) (2,598,623)
95,595,256 10,299,433
71,475,870 7,700,810

107.74
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2019 28

2019 28
70,092,882 70,092,882
2,250 2,250
70,095,132 70,095,132
2019 28
205,328 205,328
205,328 205,328
FASB ASC 740

50
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12,368,929 43,574,453 8,686,382 30,965,492 95,595,256
1,138,155 113,491 608,589 1,329,074 3,189,309
(4,439,202) (4,481,341)  (6,502,899)  (9,209,212)  (24,632,654)
(120,382)  (333,450) (125,331) (340,121) (919, 284)
(520,564) (1,938,152) 95,824 606,135 (1,756,757)
8,426,936 36,935,001 2,762,565 23,351,368 71,475,870

135,405 475,189 879,804 3,117,938 4,608,336
13,275 1,246 61,776 134,461 210,759
(50, 556) (50,716) (661,560) (929,636)  (1,692,468)
98,124 425,719 280,020 2,322,763 3,126,627
85.88 86.76 9.87 10.05
10,000
10.00
10
2019 28
2019 28
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10
2017

ASC 815-10-50

a b

c
ASC 815
1SDA 1SDA
1SDA

2019 28 MNA

MNA

(€3]
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Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 3 (©)
Citibank NA 2,247 (2,247)
2,250 (2,250)
2019 28 MNA
MNA
(©)
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 154 (©) 151
Citibank NA 205,174 (2,247) 202,927
205,328 (2,250) 203,078
@
2019 28
2,250 (205,328)
2019 28
(3,262,534) (236,081)

115/199



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.68 0.03 0.25
0.22
0.40 0.35
2019 28
543,085 2019 28 37,770
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
50,000
2019 28 147,064 2019
28 24,513
0.015
15,000 2019
28 15,001 2019 28 3,805
0.02
2019 28 15,973
2019 28 2,356
0.60
2019 28 479,192
2019 28 70,297
10
140,000
FATCA/CRS 1,500
11
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2007 - 2008
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13
2019
2019
537,946
2019
449,246
22,419
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1970
28
2019 26 194,527
5,756 527,787
2019 26 933,245
2,784,165
33,003 151,881
138,459
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 28, 2009

(Expressed In Unlted States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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Aot

Brrvmsbments bn peour e, of valus (oot of USD TLATS 84N

[= ]

Rucalvaile for ubeription proomds

briterest rewvable

Unrgadlized appredation on forward foreign currency sxdhange tonbracts
Tl aats

Liabilities:

Unregtiped depreclytion on rward forelen surmency sxdharge sontracts
Paywble for Undis redesmed

Aeruad gt Wekt

Accrud probesfonsl Faen

Acorard management fees

Arcnapd cuttodien o wab-edminfitratonrs fee
Acorasd registration fees

Aerad wunes s
Acciapd agand csrrpiy i leei

Aconad ransfer agent fees

ACord ot e ENpEnE

Tl |fwbilitfes

Wt fpsote Attributablato Unatholdor

dunadyeic of Nat et

Pardin oapfial

Aol uted urel mriboted i aErant gan

Accumuluted ret resdloed lopeet on Invetments ond forelgn currency ranecfionn and forsand
lerakin curf ey eachange coniracti

et urrisllzed depredstion onlrvestmen s and Sorelen currengy tranasctions and foreeard forelgn
LTSy B [on res

Hat Apsats Attributabla to Unitholders

Hat fsse Valus par Unin

BT Mionthly Dfsirkution Class 1Y S80S0, 516 + 58,124 Unlts outstanding]

AT Sarnli-Annual DistrButfon Class I8 4,111,604, 311 # 425,719 Untts outstandrg)
NUSE Mty D wereibution ik USD 2,762,565 4 260,020 Unlti outstanding]

LD Seeviin nwid Disivibotion Qe S0 33,358,368 + 3,322,753 Undin outstan ding]

ush ftece il
1,E52,066

e, 07

1313

3250

22,058

|

5328
195,558
25T
AR
T
24,513
16,272
3805
1356
FALS
g0z

566, 1R

U 71 Ll

L) T340, 78488
2,338,552
|3 e e

b 4

:

Py 560
656
S87
10,05

|

5
-

12

B

Th BecOmMPamAng nobes are o intazial parm of these Rrandisl statemants,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2019
(Expressed In United States Dollar)

Irar rrand Ingorsar

Briba st LN 3,550,509
Tobal Investroent rcome LELTR
E o s
M anagern | e 543,085
CEririto's fees 475,192
Ciritedian atd ub -adm nlELrees"L el 147064
Tranher agent fees HEAT ]
Agent company's fees 15,97
Trustoe bits 15,001
Rueghiradion el 13,664
Profesgonal tees 4550
(Rl D B B 5,338
Tabsl Expibi 1,306, LET
Ha |rvesbman Inasma LITRIIT
Realizad and Uns salzad Gaing|Losas)
Beadiped gainayilorses)
brvewrgtrrnt in S e [ 5,655
Forelgn currency ran mctions and foreend foreign owrenty sechange contracs [3.306. 4050
Mt rwalloed lomiurs (3, 752,3540
Charyge in wrreillind mpredstion| depredatian)
investments in seaarites Gl
Foreign currendy’ ran sactons and forsand fonegn oumenoy I Eng e contracts (236, 2495
P g in unres e deprecistion (31,7251
Mat realiaed and unredized lomes [EEE ]
et decansain nat aatats redulting from oparations FSD [1,736,757}

The BEcompasnang nobes are an intageal part of these franeisl statements,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019
{Expressed In United States Dollar)
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ner gz [Deoreusa) in Wk Aeeats from:

Oper atione

et investment income

et reafzed lnsses

Net chaegs in ureealined degreciation

Mot decreiae in ek e b el ing from apengtian

Bigtributions to Unitheldars
JIPY Mg thiy D strfsution Olass
I Saved Andiisd Dis tribetian Claks
USD Menithly DigtrButien Qi
IS0 Sl -Annual D strifen fon Clas
Taoriml Dhatribulions

Capital Tranzactiona:
Uity fnoued
1T Maan thy Desiriesfion Sees [ 19,275 Undis)
15 Saeel Anwisd Dis ortbtiam Olaes (1,286 Usin)
LI5S0 Mignthly Déetrbution Qe (63,77 Linits)
LD Sermd Annual Distrioution e 1584861 Units)

Uil rediimed
1FT Monthly Céstrisution Class (30,556 Units}
19 Sad Al Distributiom Class |50, 716 Unies)
LD Mgnthly Dfstrutfon Qs (E251 500 Units)
LIS Saproad Aol Do sty s Ol (929,636 Units)

et deriii in net Siiet reid Ung from capllel fracdacdons
Total Dooraasas in Mt Arssts

N Assete
Bagirning of yewr
Ered o yiunr

e L2251
{3,752,354)
1223, 735)
LS5 TSN

(120,380
1333450
[125330)

IE‘I?I!

95,505 155
LD T LA ER

Th BecOmMPamAng nobes are o intazial parm of these Rrandisl statemants,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

CRGAMIZATION

Boubleline Total Retum Fund {the “fund”™) is 2 series trust of the hilkko AM Offshone funds, an open-emded unit trust
establishied by 2 supplemarntal trist deed dated Febnuary 8, 2007 (the “Supplemental Trust Desd™ ), under the laws of the
Cayrran Isknds. Nikko a3 Offshore Funds wan established by a master trust deed dated October 15, 2012 {the ~Saster
Trust Read” ], urgher the lows of tha Cayman 1slangs and is Rorrsed with the Cayman slands Monetary Authority purseent
o section & 1ja] of the Mutnal Funds Les (2009 Revition). The Fund commenced operations on March 30, 2017,

The Fund's assets ane managed on a day to day basis by Kikko AN Global Cayman Limited {the “Manager™). The Manager
delegates imvesiment maragement cuties to Nikko Assel Management Co, [td, [the “inwestment Mamager). The
Imeesiment Manager delegates imvesiment maregement duties to Soubleline Capial P, (1he *Sub-rvestment Marager®].
The agranistration of the Fund is delegated to Brown Brothers Hariman B Co. (the "Custedian™ and =Sub-Adrmirsstrator™],
a limited partnership coganized vnder the kws of the State of New Yook

The imvestment objective of the Fund is to achigve a mid to long term total retum through incosms and capital appredation,
Uncier normal cecumstances, the Serles Trust shall imest oser 500 of its et assets in residential angd comenerdial
mortgage badked seourities, actively allocated between agency and non -agncy securities.

These imestmends may indude morgage-backed securities of any maturity of type, induding those guaranteed by, or
apcured by collaterdl that is guarantesd by, the United States Govemnmend, its agencies, inmtromentalities o sponsaved
corporations, and privately issued mortgagn-backed securities rated @t the time of purchase Aa3 or higher by Moody's or
- or higher by 352 or of an eguivalent rating by any ather nationally recognized statistical rating organization [“NRSAO7)
that h::bem recognized by the U5, Securities 2nd Exchange Commission o unrated seounities that ane determined by the
Irm v gor or its deleg; to be of comparable qualty. Thess imvestrments also include, among others, LLS.

Government mongage pass-through securities, collsteralized morgage obligations, mukiclass pass-through securities,
privaie mortgage pats-through securities.

The Series Trust may alsoimeest in short teom investments, such a5 notes issued by LS. Government agencies, and bonds,
delet securities and other fixed income instruments issed by U5 Governmental or private-sectorn entities, or other asset-
backed obligations, collateralized losn obligations, and obligations of the LS Gowmmem and iBs agendes,
insturnentalities and sponsned comparstions

The Seried Trust may imvest in bonds of any aredit quality, induding those that are a2 the time of Bwetbment uarated or
rated 85+ or lower by S&F or Sal or lower by Moody's or of an equivalent rating by any other NRSR0, Bonds ard fined
incoeme instruments rated below investment grade, of Such indtruments that sce uerated and determined by the
Imemstmend Manager or its delegates to be of comparable quality, are high yield, high risk bonds, commonly known a5 junk
bords’. The Series Trust may imest wp to a thied of its net assets in junk bonds, bark loans and agtignments that are either
rated below investmend grade or are unrated but determined by the investmen? Manager or s delegates 1o be of
comparable quality, and credit défaul? swaps of companies in the high yield unierse.

The Series Trust may imeest a portion of it et assets i imverse floater securities and intenest-only and principal-onky
dEfurilies

Undier the tenms of the Supplementisl Trust Deed and the Master Tust Geed, CIBC Bark and Trust Comgany {Cayman]
Limited (the “Trustes™ and the “Adminittrator”] = named as Trustes of the Fund,

The Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF) Morgan Stanley P8 Seourities Co, Ud to act as Agent Company {the “Agent
Company”] and the Manager apponted Mitsubishi UF) Morgan Stanlay F3 Securitees Cou, Ubd and SMIBC Trust Sank Lid. to
act as Distributors {the = Distnk 5”1 of Units in Japan.

SURAPAARY OF SISNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

The Fund is an imestment Company that follows the acoounting and reporting guidance in FASE Accowumting Standards
Cacifica tion G446,

Uit oof Extimates
The accompanying finardal statemmsenss have been prepared in accordance with accounting prindples generally accepted in
the United $tates of Aumenic {(7U.5 GAAF). The preparation of finandal stotements in accordance with LS. GAAF requiines
thie Fingd’s management 1o make estimates and assuengtions that affect the reported amownts of assets and Rabilities and
dischosunes of contingerst assets and labdities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amourts of

123/199



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

SURAPAARY OF SPENIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {contined)

Use of Estimates feontinued)
revenues ang experses during the reporting period, Actual results, inchuging the ultimate amourt realized vpon the sbe of
Fadr valued imvestrinerds, could differ from thote egtimates and wch differences may be significand.

Bais af Ascounting

Security and confractual rarsactions are recorded on @ iradefcontract-date: basls. imenest incoime |5 necorded on an
effiectie yield basis, net of ary applicablle withholding ta intenest expense and other expenses are necorded on 20 aconual
basis. Realized gains and losses from secunity tramsactions are computed on the basis of the sverage cost of the securitees
sold or cowered, Changes in the waluation of imwesiments are recorded in the 5 of Oy jors as unreali
appreciation of depreciation,

Valuation of imastments

Bords and other delbt securities, indhuding restricted securities fother than short-ferm cbligations but ncluding listed
issues) are fair valued i their list sale price in the principal market Bn which such securities are normally traded, on the
basis of vabuatiors furrished by a priding service, use of which has been approwed by the imvesiment Manager, or if no sle
has prwred, the bid price on the valustion date a3 provided by broker s wher are market makers in the seourities. All debt
secuirithes with less than 12 months to maturity date, in prindiple shall be fair valued using an amontized cost effected by an
effecdive yield acoumulated/amonization method to their matwdity date with adjuitiments based on companion with
markn? prices a5 reguined,

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on falr value measurements and disclosures under LS. GAAP, the Furd
dizcloses the foir value of its investments in a hieranchy that priosities the inputs to valuation tedhniques wsed to meawre
the fair wabue The hierarchy gives the highest prigrity to vabuations based upon unadiusted guoted prioes in actiee markets
for idemtical assets or lisb#ities (Leved 1 meaivrement} and the lowest priority to valuatiom based wpon unobdenable
inpats that are significant to the valuation {Level 3 measurements), The guidance establishes theen levels of the fair valee
hiexrarchy as follows:

& Leyel | = Ipputs that refles unasjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical mvesirments that the Pund
has the abdlity to access a1 the measurement date

- Lewved 2 = Inputs ather than quoted pl'iCH that are !"’i‘ﬁtﬂl‘lt ard obterdable for the asset or Bability either
directly or indirectly, induding nputs in markets that arenot comsidered 1o be active;

= Lewed 3 = Inguts that are sigrificant and unabsenalide.

Impuats are used i Applying (he vimous valustion technigues and broadly refer to the assumplions that maket participants
s b make valuation dedision s, including assumptions abou risk, inputs may Indude price information, spedfic and broad
arecn data, hcuidity statistics, and other factors, A firerdslirstrument's el within the {air value hierarchy is based upan
the kowest bevel of any input that is significant to the fair value measuremant, However, the determanation of what
corstilutes “abiennable” reguires significan judgment by the nwestment Manager, The mvesiment Masnager consicers
ohaorable data 10 be market dats which is readily rvailable, regulay disoributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not
proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are setively imobes in the relever market. The categorization of a
financial mstnamsent vithin the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the irstrument and does not necessarly
corredpond bo the irvestmert Maneger's perceined risk of that instrument.,

Imenstbmerds whose values are based on the guoted market prices in acthes markets, and therefore classified wishin Level 1,
winild incluche actively traced equities, certain US. government and sovereign obligations, and ceriain assel-backed
securities and colfateralized mongage obligations. The ivestment Manager would not adjust the guoted price for such
st pearts, even in situations where the Fund held & lange position and a sale could reasonably impact the quated price.

Imeestments that trade in markets that are not considered to ba aclive, but are valued based on quoted market prices,
dealer quotations or alternathes pridng sounces supported by observablis inputs are classified within Leve 3. These indude
investment-grade debt securities, short-term imvestments and foreand foreign curnency exchange comtracts and may ako
include cenain asset-backed seouritins and collateralined mortgage obligations, As Level 2 imestments incude positions
that are not traded in acthee markets andlor are wbject 1o transfer resiictions, valustioms. may be adjsted to reflect
illiguiginy andfor non-tansferabilitg, which are gererally based on available rmarket infpamation,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

SURAPAARY OF SPENIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {contined)

waknation of imvestmends [eont inued]

Imepstmerds dassified within Level 3 have signifiant unobservable inputs, a5 they would trade infrecuently. Level 3
instruments would inchede certain asset-badied securities and collateralized morigage obligations. As observable prices are
not available for those seourithes, the Fund would wse valuation technigues te derboe the fair vabue

The inputt or methodology wsed for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the itk associated with investing
in those spcurities,

The following table presents the finandal Instruments carled on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by cagition and by
level within the valustion hierarchy & of Febnary 3, 2018 Further dessifications of the finandal Enstromends are
presented in the Fortfolie of investments. There were no mavemants batween levels during the year,

Acoets at Falr Valus Falr vatus at
_ Levell Lewel 2 Ll 3 February 28, 2019
Fimied Ing oma [E7F] - [T VoL AR (=] - WD HOAR AR
Forward Foregn Cornency
Exthange Conteact, _ - _ _Z.250 _ - TI50
Teaal 50 = Lk T, 83 LE7H] = L G132
Lighilitied. 58 Fair value Farir Vabon 51
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 February 8, 3019

Faorwird Forpgn Cunnindy
Eschange Cotracty — 50 ke
Total

- usD P32

- st ok vl ]

8lé
gl

Foreign Currendy Tranelation

Aty and liabilities beld fn currencies other than Urited States Collar [*US0" or the “Functionall Curfency™ ) are translated
to the Functionsl Currency &t the rate of E‘nd‘#l"# pfmi'ng at the firancs]l siatemen date. Incxme and expeniss are
trarslated at the rote of echange prevailing ot the date on which the ircome or expense i inourmed. Realized and
urredlined gand bnd losded aiting on forsign curnency Ierdbitiond are induded n the Stitement of Operations in 1he
\periad in which they acour.

The Fund does not isolate that portion of the resulis of oper ations resulting from charges in foreign exchange rates on
investments from the fluciuations .I.Ii!;-l'i‘ fram ﬂ'h\gﬂ. in market ,plﬁ'. of secuities hebd. Such fluctuations are induded
with the et realived and vreealined gain or loss from imestment 5.

Imcome Toees

Under the cunrert laws of the Cayrran slands, thesre are no incomes, withbolding, capital gains or other taxes payable by
the Fumd. In eerain jurisdictions oiber than the Cayman Klands, rﬂE‘m‘l taxesmay be withheld at souroe dn dividends and
interest recehved by the Fundl Capital gains deveed by the Fund in such jurisdictions generally will be exempt from forsign
ingoere of withPolding taxes ot sowree. The Furd irberds to conduet it affairs Such that it will not be sulbject to income tax
in ary jurisdiction. As a result, no provision for income times has been made in the financial statements. Unitholders may
e tamed on their proportionate thane of the Furd's tax bt inoome Besed an thedr indnadual droumstanoes.

Thee Fund follows the autheritative guidanoe on adcounting for and diddosure of undertsinty in tax positions {Finardal
Accpuning Sandands Board (“FASET) - Accourting Standards Cocification TA0), which recuires the Manager to determine
whether & tax position of the Fund @S mane likely than not 1o be welsined upon exarimation by the appliceble ting
autherity, mduding resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the techrical fredits of the position,
Faw fax positions. mesting the more ely than not theeshold, the ta benefit recognized in the finsndial statements i
recuced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ullimate settlemens
with the relevant faxing suthority. The Macager b determined that there i@ minimal or no effect on the finandcal
staternents being urder this authoritatiee guidanoe.

Forward Foreign Currercy Exchange Controcts

The Furd may enter into forward foreign currency excharge cantracts to hedge againit forsign cumrency exchange rate
fisks on ol or a portion of Pon-USD denarrenated ievestmerts o for effetent portfalio management purposes. When
enbering into a farward foreign currency exchange contract, the Fund agrees to receive of deliver 3 fised quantity of
I Enge Cuamdndy o BN Brebd-upon prce of an agheed futne date, These conbracts are valued daily, drd the Fund's met
equity thergin, mepresenting urnealiced spprecistion fdepreciation) on the contracts ss mestured by the differonce
between the forwerd fonmgn cumrency exdhange rates ot the dates af emry into the cortesets and the forwarnd rates ol the
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

SUBAPAARY OF SPENIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continaed)

Fanveard Forsign Curreacy Exchange Contrals (coatinued]
reporting date, s included in the Statement of Assets and Uabalithes. Realized and unreallzed gairs ard losses ane induded
inthe Statement of Operations,

These instremerts imobe market sk, credit risk, or both kinds of risks, in excess of the amount recognized in the
Statemert of Assets and Wzbilisies, Risks arise from the possibds inability of courienparties te meet the terms of their
comracs and from maovement in ourrency and wescurities walses and @nterest rafes. o addition to the Class level hedging,
the Fund had realized gain of LED L8422 on 15 forward forelgn currency exchange contracts during the year with an
average notional of LS0 36,312 and an average tenm to maturity of 10days. The fund had net reslived lows of USD 600,064
o 44 forward forddgn currency exchange contracts held at the JPY Monthlly Distribartion Class Hedged level during the year
with an average notional of USE 5,205,458 and an average term fo maturily of 34 days. The Fund also had realized loss of
USD 2,553,612 on 42 forward foreign currency exchange conbracts held at tha JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Hiedged
leved during the wear with an average notional of USD 31,537,002 and am average term (o madurity of 3% days

Cosh ond Farefgn Cunnemoy
Crsh and forsign currency comprities ol ourt ercy hedd with Brown Brothers Mardimen & Co., snd owerright ard other shart
term placements with other financial institutions.

LEaTS.

The ret assels of the Fund see divided Bnto 1PY Monthly Distribution Class Urits, JPY Semi-Anmual Distribution Class Urits,
USD Morhly Dittribution (lase Units snd LUSD Semi-Annual Cistribution (lass Units. The Lnits are derominated in United
States Dollar and Japarese Yen, JPY Montbly Distribotion Class Units, JPY Semi-fnrusl Distribotion Class Units, LSD
Morthly Cistribution Class Units and USE Semi-Annual Distribution Cless Units ane svailsble to an eligible irestor whao is
Ay pre S, Slapor o o entity which B not i) 2 cilisen of resident of the LU, a parbner dhip orpganiced of exdsting in the
U, or any corparation, frust of oiher entity organiced wnder the laws of or exisfing in the US; {if] perisn o entity resident
o dorricled in the C-l'f'ﬂ'l‘-h‘l 1R itlth.ﬁ'l‘ any object of a dharitable thus oF power oF AN ecempted OF non-nesident
Cayman Idands compary]; (] ureble to subscribe for or hold Units withoat violating applicable laws, or (i a oustodian,
nanminee, oF lFustee for any person, rparation o ety desaribed in i) 1o (@) abave

Thi Marager may determing to issue one o mace clindes of Urits of the Furd withaut prior notice to of wiitten conmient of
the Unitholders.

Al of the net assens pitributable to JPY Monthly Distribution Class Umits, JPY Serrs-Arnusl Distribution Oass Lnins Class,
S0 Menthly Dittribution Cles Units and USD Serni- Arruel Distribution Class Units, ane Beld by twes Unishalders.

IPY Merthly 1P Semi-Annud USD Menthly  USD Semi-Ancual
Distitagion Class  DistibuSion Cats  DistribuSion Ot DR fbution Olast Tocal Furd

Balance st Fabruary 28, 2018 LSD 123EE575  USD 43574451 USD BEBRIET  USD IOSE5402 USD 55595155
Subrisription during By 3,138,155 PR EEH SR SHD 1.329.004 ERL LR
Hidimotioen durirg thi yiar {43550 AL 46502853} §3. 208,212 (24532 £54)
strbtions hrak -l (3334500 {125,331} {340,121} {sxaraa)
et ingreai | ocraave) N N1 LR

Ficiting fren oparia 15205540 [LAXEI50 ShEM B.135 11.756,751
it Asaarts 3k Fabnaary 28, 3019 UsD BARSIIE WAL 36935000 USD 2,762,565 LD ¥3.351,368 LISE 1AV, B
hamibier of Lindbs in ismse at

Feioruary I8, 2018 135,406 4TS 159 79,80 3,917,938 4,508,335
L i duaring, Ehe el 13375 LME 51,776 134,461 s
Lns raduamad dusing th yaar 0558 gy jEeL 560} {520,086} LB
Wi of Units in duscsie ot

Febeuary 25, 2019 281 ATRTIS R0, 020 2332763 L1P662T
et Aanrk Valud pir Undtat

Fabeuniy I8, 2019 LsD BSg82  USD B5IE USD LED T 1005
Sulmeription for Uil

JF¥ Monthly Bistribution Class Units and JFY Semi-Anmual Dimribution Class Units wene firs issued at an initial Bsue price:
ol JFY 10,000 per Unit, The minimum mnitial subsongtion for IBY Morthly Distiwtion Class Units and JPY Semi-Anrual
Cistributaon Class Units par subscriber 5 1 Unit or moee, and in multiples of 1 Units thereatter,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

LIMITS |eontinaed)

Subscriptions for Uit fcomtinwed)
LASD Monthly Distribation Class Urits ard USD Seeni-Annual Givtribution Class Units were Tirst lsued at an inttial issue price
of A% 1008 per Urit. The minimum initial subsoription far USD Monthiy Cistribation Class Units and USD Semi-anmual

Distribution Class Units per subscriber 15 10 Units or more, and in muligples of 1 Unit thereafier.

Ther Manager may waive or change the mirémum initial and additioral subscription smounts set forh above In its sole
dizcretion from fime to time.

Lt Redemptions

The Fund recognites redemplions in accordance with the authoritative guidance on distingudshing Hakslities from ecuity,
Recemptions, whether expressed 2= United States Collar, Japanese Yen or Units, are recognized as liabilities when each of
the Japamese Yen arnd United Siates Dollar Unit amounts requested in the redemption notice becomes ficed, whidh
generally may ooour either at the time of tha receipd of the notice, o on the last day of a fecal year, depending on the
rature of the request. As a result, redemplions pasd after the erd of the year, bat based upon year end ret assets are
reflected a5 recemptions payable at Februany 28, 2019, There were USD nil and IFY ril of redemptions payable as at
February 28, 7018 induded 23 Fayable for Units redeemed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

Repurchase af Linits
Linits may be rppurchased at the opticn of Unitholders on sach Repurchase Day,

Unitholders wishing 1o hawe Uinits repurchased must send a completed Repurchase Notice to the Distributors so 25 to be
received by the Distributors no later than 3200 pom {Tokyo time] on the relevart Aepurchase Doy, The Distributors will
send the completed Repurdhase Notices to the Sub-admiristrator by ro later than 6:00 p.m, {Tokyo fiene] on the relesand
Repurchase Day or by tuch other time as the Sub-Administrator rmary in any particular case defenmine

1f the: reflevant Aepunchase Notice is not reoeived by the Sub-administrator by the ndevart time, the Repurchase Motice will
be hold orer undil the next following Aepurchase Doy after tha Repurchase Notios Is received and Units will then be
receemed at the rdevant repurchase price applicable on thet Repurchese: Doy,

A Repurchase Notice, onoe given, is inresvocable.

Compulsory Redempdion

Irthe ewent that the Trustes of the Marager shall determine that any Uinits of ary dass of a Senies Trust are beang held by
o for the benefit of a person who is not an Eligibde Investor for such Series Trust or that such holding would cawse the
Trust o the Seies Trust 1o be requined 1o regsten, be subpect 1o tax of vinlate the bews of any juisdiction, or il the Trusiee
oo the Manager has reason to doubt the legitimacy of the sournce of mondes wsed to fend the subscoription or purchase of
such Urdls, of for whateser reason [whidh may not be desclosed By the Trusiee o the Manager 19 Unitholders) that the
Trustee or the Manager consiclers appropriate 21 its absolute discretion having regard to the inferests of the Unitholders of
the relevant Class or the Unithalders of the Soes Trst a5 a whole, then the Manager, after consultation with the Trustee,
may direct the holder thereo! to sell (subpect 1o the provisions described below in the section headed “Trarsfer of Linits™)
such Units within 10 days and provide to the Trustee and the Manager evidenoe of such sale, failing which the Manager
may recesm sudh Units

Terménation of the Fund
Upen tedrrination, the Manages will reakee all the assets of the Fund, and after paying out of retairing adeguate provision
fior all Habdlities properly payable and retaining provision for the costs of the tenmination, the Trustes shall distribute the
proceeds of that Fealizstion to the Unithalders peopomion#tely to thiir rspectiae interedts i the Fund as of the date of
termination of the Fund,

Dysinbidrons fo U holders

The Manager may, from fime 1o teme, inits sole discretion, dedare distributions from September 2017, Distribution will be
diechired on each Distribution Aecord Dete ard calculated on each Ex-Distibution Date. Distribution Pericd is a peried
commercing from the calendar day follwing the preceding Distribution Aecord Date and erding on and induding the
Gistribution fecord Date. The distributions will be paid on the relevent Distribution Payment Dade, provided that such
amount [if any] declared with respect to the eelevant Class of Units Bn respect of the applicable Distribution Peniod shall
aenly ber paid out of the Series Trust's pet incorre, realized angd unrealiced capital gains and any distributable funds of the
Saries Trust attributable 1o such Class of Units as determined by the Maragor.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

LIMITS |eontinaed)

Distribuions fo Umilholders foomimwed)

The declaration of distributions to Unitholders reduces the Class Level Net Aset Value per Unit without any comesponcing
charge in the number of Class Level Units per Unitholder, This resulis in @ Unitholder's overall investment in the Fund
betng reduged, In addition, ary cistributions during a period which are in excess of the Fund's ret increase in net assets
resulbing from operations resulls mn a panion of the dtibution being retom of capstal.

The amount of distributions, if ary, will be determined by the Manager in its role dhoetion, and no representation or
Ruaranies is made that a distribution will be made in respect of each or any Distribution Period,

Copitalisztion

Ther Net Asset Value per Unit §s caloulated for sach Dealing Day | each Valuation ey, or sich other day o days as the
Manager fidy from time bo tisme detenmine m respect of the Semes Trust], by dhviding the difference an value between the
Fund s assets and liabdlities {inclhusding acorued fees ard experses of the Fund) by the number of Units setsianding,

Ther Trust Deed stipulates that the nurber of Units to be issued in the Fund shall be unhmited a5 the Manager shall
determine and shall be without par value.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INS TRUNMENTS

Aecounting Standerd Codification [ASC) 815-10-50 reguires discloiures about derprative instruments snd hadging sctindties,
It reuires that the Fung disclose: a) how and why an entity uses derivative irstr , by oy cerivatiee inatnuments ard
related Bedged Hérs ane sicdurted for bid &) how defmedting mdtrumints bnd cefated hedgisd hemd affedt B entity's
fanarcial position, finarcial perisem ance and cash flowes,

The Fund trapsacts fonward defivative inslruments prinarily foe hedging purposes with each iestrument’s primary fisk
expiur e being forsign exchange risk. The forward farsign currency exchange contracts hed by the Fund do not gualify 5
hedges for accounting purposes under the feguirements of ASC 815, The fair value of these defvative insrurments is
included in the Statenent of Adets and Liabilities with deanges in fair value reflected &% reslized gaind/{losed) or net
charge inunrealized apprecistion fdeprecation] on defivatives within the Statement of Operations {Note 2

Thie Fund miry &rter into an rtemational Swaps ond Dervitiee Assocation, Inc. Master Agresrnent (TS0A Mister
Agresrnent”) with itd courterpartisl in ofder to miigite counteiperty ik The ISDA Maiter Agresment # typically
regotisted by the Fund and RS courtenparsies, containing the bi-lateral terms and concitions for ol subseguent dervative
trarsactions. The BOG Master Agreermont alkves for the netting of all amourts owed to or due from counterparty into a
fingle pit plymeal if § chedat evend of default shauld aedut,

At Felrusey 28, 2019 the furd had entered nto the following derivativie ssets by countenparty el of amounts availabde
fior offset under a Master Metting Agreement {*MA3A7] and net of any collateral receivied by the Fund:

Derhvathin ATt Morrcash Cash hEt Amourt of
Counmteipaty Subjet to 8 KA Awadsbie for Offuet Collstersl Received Collatersl Raceivd Dariustive Atistt”
By oty Haesman B Do Lis B0 [3pLsn -L50 ~ A0 =
Ciibark KA, —_ 2247 LSD 2247 = = =
Tonal uso 2,250 UsD §2,250) UsD —Lsh ] -

At February 28, 2019 the Fund had erteded into the following derrative habdities by counterparty net of amsunts available
for offset under & MNA and net of any collateral plediged by the Fund:

Derbathe Derivartives Momecash Cash et Amourt of
Counterparty Lizbiiies Arailabie for Offoet Collatesal Pledged  Collateral Mledged Derrathve
Subjet ta MRA Liatslizies '
e Brathers Marsiman & Co. LS TRALSD [ETTEE 4 =Ls0 =L 151
Chibank KA 205,174 §2,243) - - 20537
Toral uso 205,378 USD {2.250) USD — 50 - s 03,078

b At el U Pl arou i Sicsnvalin b eyl Trocs e ¢ oun LETRRA Y D the svmil o BeledL
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRURENTS [continund)

At Febeuary 28, 2013 the Fund had erteded into the following derivatives:

Miinet Derivathoes Liakility Derivatives
Draleativet Aatement ‘Saternent
Mot Acooated fior a5 of Astets aned of Assett and
Instriansenis Ligkifitiel Lo ation Fair value Liakilitied Logation Fair Valae
Forward toraign durranty  Unraalized apraciatioe L realipid dinwradi 3800
awchdrgd donfiviit ey Pirwis'd Faniign B fowward S
{Currenoy Risk) CuFTENCy duchange LA LIS currency eschange [EX+] {305, 32E)
COFAT BT Loracts
The effect of derhatha: on the 5 of Sperations for the year erded February 38, 2015:
Champe in Wnrealized
Lo ation of Healioes appredation or
Dertvatives Kot Accounted Gadn o Loes) Gain or [Loec) |Depreciation) on
for as Hedging Inctruments on Derbaatives on Deviwative: Diertvathers
it reakined lasa on farwand Barign
Forwand forsgn curnandy Ty s change contracty;
FRChANGE Loty charipe o wrealiced aggepciation
{Curringy Risk) i ation]) o0 forwird Pragadernindy  LGD (LP5253E) W50 (2306,0E1)
fal:hlﬂ Corkraits
TAANAGEMENT FEES

The Manager i4 entitled % recsive out of the assets of the Series Trust a manegement fee of 3 total up to CUGRH per anrurm
{LOE% per @nruam in respect of fee for the Manager, 0255 per annuim of the Net Asset Value up to USD 400 million 2nd
QL2356 per annum of the Net Astet Value oaer USD 400 milion in respect of fee for the immestmant Menager, and (L8056 per
arnum of the Met Asset Value up 1o LUSD 400 rillion and D35% per arnem of the Net Asset Value over LSD 400 million in
reipect of fee for the Sub-wvestment Manager] of the Net Asset Value accreed on, and caloulsted a3 a2, each Valuation
[ay and payabde momhly @0 srreers, In addiion, the Managsr @ alio enfithed 1o be reimbursed out of the 25213 of the
Series Trust for any expenses incurred by it in the proper performance of its powers ard duties as permitted under the
Master Trust Deed. Dufing the yeer erded Februany X8, 2019, the Mansger earmed fees of USD 563,085, of which USD
37,770 s s1ill outstancing as of Febwuary 18, 2019,

The Manager will pay the {ees of the meestment Manager cut of its fees, The isvestmerd Manager will be responsible for
paying the fees of the Sub-irmestment Menager snd any of the nvestment Menager's delegates of ot her panties appoired
by the Irepstment Manager to perform i1s functions in respect of the Sefies Tiust,

CUSTODAN AND SUB-NDMINISTRATOR'S TEES

The Fund has a oustedy and accounting agreement with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. {the “Custodin” and “Sub-
Adrriristrator) for which the Qustodian receives a fiee caloulsted gnd poid mmonthly based on total assets and tramaction
wabume,

Thie Custodian ard Sub-Adranistratod is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust an administretion fee
(inchuching trarsfer agent fee) calculated based on the Net Asset Value 35 81 each Valuastion Day af the following anrual
rate

- 007 up to (ard incheging) WSO 250 millicn,

- L0 upr b [ard indeding) LSO 500 million;

- LES%E orer USDE 500 million,

Such administration fee is payable monthly in arears, and subject 1o the manimum anrual Tee of USD 60000 The Sub-
Actrrinistrator i abo entithed o receine out of the assets of the Series Trud fees fad cunfency BdrminisIration snd exeoution
seryices at 1he rate of 0.05% per arnum of the Met Asset value of the relevars Urin Cass, subject 1o the mirimum anmal
Featr aof UG 50,000 In aadition, the Custodibn and Sub-Sdministrator is also ontitle bo receive cudtomany safekeeping fees
ard rarsaction charges, All sut-of-pocket mpermses of the Custodian angd Sub-Administrator shall alse be borme by the
Series Trust, During the year ended February 28, 2019, the Custodian sarned fees of USD 147,064, of which LSD 24513 s
still eutstanding as of February 28, 2019,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

THUSTEE FLES

The Trustes i entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust 2 combined fee at the rate of 0.015% per annum of
the Net Asset Valee acoruesd on, and caloulated as a1 eech Vahation ay and payable quarterly in arrears, subject 1o a
minimurm annual fee of USD 15,0000 Suring the year snded February 28, X119, the Trster sarred fees of USD 15001, of
whach USD 3,805 s will outstanding as of February 28, 3015,

AGENT COMIFANY'S FEES

Thir Agent Company b entitled to receive out of the axsets of the Seres Trust a fee ot the ate of 0O3% per arnum of the
Nt Asset Value 2cored o, and caloulated as at, each Vahation Qay and payable guarterly in amears, Buring the year
ended Febrnuary 28, 1019, the Agert earred fees of USD 15,973, of which USD 3,356 Is still outstanding as of February 18,
#0185,

HETRIBUTION FEES

The Distintors it entithed toreceivie oul of the asaets of the Series Trost & fee ot the rate of 0605 peer araem of the et
Asnet Value accrued on, snd caloukated as ot each Vialuation Day and payable quarterdy in arvesrs. Buring the year ended
Febeuary 28, 2019, the Distributors esrred feed of LSD 479,192, of whidh USD 70,257 is still outstanding as of February 28,
2015

OTHER FEES AMD EXPEMSES

Thi crits and Baperses in connection with the establisherent of the Sedes Trest and the offering of the Units, together
with the establiehment of the Trust, inchading the costs and experies of prepering @nd prinfing ary prospecius or
explanatory brochures resuired, were estimated 8t laundh 1o amaunt 1o approsienately USD 140,000, Such costs and
expentes will be amortised within the first five (5} financiel years of the Sevies Trust unless the Trustee decides that some
oiher methed shall be applied. The Admirisirator receiees UED 1,500 per antum for FATCA / CRS complianes serices.

FINANCIAL RISK PAANAGEMENT

This Fund's sctivities sapase it 1o & variety of firsndial fisks: marke! risk finduding pice duk, interes! rie sk, and curtenty
risk), oredi risk and Bnuidity risk,

Mokl Risk
Al irreestnents present 8 risk of B of copitel The Imeestment Manager moderates this risk through 2 caneful selection of
seurities ond other firancial instruments,

The Fund's ivestment maragement process is dessribed in Note L The primery deterranant of the Fund's ability to meet
its objectree of mid to long term capital appredation while earning income b depencent on the performance of the
investmerd in the resicent ial and commendal reorgs ge-backed securities.

Thee viluis of the Fune's investimers are sfected by & number of factors, induding but not linsited to, changesin the wider
econoeny, financial argd ourrency markets, forekn curency exchange rates, interest rate movements and ciedit ratings of
delbt isuers. The Fund erders imo fonward contescts which 1o vardng degrees represent a irarket risk in excess of the
ameunt reflected on the Fund®s Statement of Assets and Liabslibes, The notional amourt of the commdt represents the
extent of the Fund's particpation in these finandal inttroments Market rishs associated with swdh contracts aise due o
the porssible mowemerds in foreign currency exchan ge rates underying these instruerents,

Orther market ard orecit risks inchuce the possibility that there may be an llguid market for the contracts, that the change
in tha value of the contract may not disecily correlate with changes in the value of the underbdng ouerencies or that the
coanierparly 1o A forward combract defaulis on its obligation to perlonm under the ferms of the contract, The Fund's
exposung to loss due to counterparty non: performance on open futunes, foreards, vaap and options comracts i limited 1o
the urrealied apprecistion nherent in seeh finapdal irstruments which are recognized in the Statement of Assets and
Liakilitins.

Asset-backed securitfes inveshamsat sk

Aswet-badked seourities investment have the risk that borrowers may default on the chiligatiors that underlie the assot-
backed security and that, during periods of faling interest rates, awet-backes seourities may be called or prepaic, which
may result in the Sexdes Trust having to reirvest proceeds in other investments at a lower interest rate, and the risk that
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

thi impaarment of the value of the collsteral underlying a seadity in which the Series Trust anvests {due, for exaemple, 10
nor-payrrent of koars ) will oesul 02 reduction in thevalue of the soourity,

FINAMNCEAL RISK PAANAG ERENT {continucd)

Comeeatariion sk

The Series Trust imests wbstartially in bonds isued by US agendes in accordance with ity prindpal imvestmens
strategies. Becauss such secunties are issued by 2 limited pumber of government agencis, any actual or potential
diwruption 1o those agendes could present a risk 1o the Series Trust. Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which are other
gowernment sponsored Bsuers of morgage-back securities similar 1o those guaranieed by Girnie Mae, suffered such a
disnuption in the mortgage orisis of 2007 - 2008 and were placed under federal conservatorship at that tinne. Ginnie Mae
securities, unlike those of Fannie Mae ard Frecdie Mac, are backed by the Tull faith and oredit of the W5, govemment and
are sebject 1o the risks of LS, govermment securities. Similar to other issmiers, changes to the firancial concition or onedin
rating of the LLS. goverrment may ciute the value of the Series Trust's saposune to LS. sgendes 1eoorities to dedine.

Morigage-backed securities risk
Mortgage-backed securities represent imterests in “pook” of mortgages and are subject fo oedit, imerest rate,
progayment and extension risk. Mortgagre-backed secwrities react differently 1o dhanges in interest rates than other bonds
and the prices of mortgagebacked securitins may reflect acverss economic and market conditions. Small movements in
imenest rates {both ncreases and decneases) may guiddy 2nd significantly reduce the value of certain mortgage-backed
securities, Defacl or bankrupicy of @ counterparty 1o a fo-be-annourced tramsaction would raposs the Senes Trust to
possible ks,

Maorigoge <elated and Other Adtel Backed Secwities risk

Certsin Funds may imvest in mortgage-related and other asset-backed securisies that directly or indirectly represent &
partidipation in, or are seoured by and payable from, loans on resl property. Mortgage-refated seounties ane oreated from
posk of residentisl of comimercial mangage loany, induding morgage Bans made by dningd and loan instutions,
mortgage bankers, commoncial banks and others. These jecurifies provide a monthly payment which conssts of both
interest and principel intenest may be detenmined by fixed or adjustable rotes. The rate of prepayments on undedying
mortigages will affect the price and volstility of a morigagerelated security, and may hawe the eFect of shortening or
extending the effective duration of the security relative to what wes antidgpated at the fime of purchese. The timely
paymment of principal ard interest of cortain mortgage-related seourities i+ guaramesd with the full faith and credin of the
US Gowernment. Pools crested and guarambeed by non-goverrmental issuers, induding  gowernmernt-4ponsoded
corparations, may be supported by varicas forms of insurance or guarantees, but there can be no asswrance that private
insurers of guarantars can meet their obligations under the irwance polides of guarantes amangements. Mary of the
risks of Investing in mongage related securithes secured by commercial mongage loars reflect the effiects of local and
other etoromic condition on real estate markets, the ability of tenants to make lease paymerts, and the ability of a
property toattract and refain fenants,

Crosfit Bk

Crecit itk represents the potential loss that the fund would incur if the countenperties or isuers of debt securities falled
b perfaam pursuant to the erms of their obligstions tothe Fund. For exchange-traded contracts, the exchinge 8c14 b4 the
counterparty to spedfic transactions and, therefore, bears the risk of delivery 1o and from counterparties of specific
positions. The Fund's managemert dives not consider that eredit risk related to open derivstive contracts will hive material
acverse effect on the firanaal cordition of the fupd,

Althowgh the Marager rrorfions the Qustodisn and believes it to be an appropriste custodian, there is no guarames that
this o any custociian that the Fund may vie from time (o fime, will not become inssbert, which could head to keses for
the Fumd,

While both the LS. Barknupicy Code ard the Securiies irvestor Protection Act of 1970 seek 10 peofect ousiomsr g open y
irt the ewerd of a failure, imolvecy o liguidation of an institution, there i Ao cortanty that, in the ewent of a failure of an
institution et has custody of Fund eseets, the Fund would not ndur Ipased due Bo its assets beng ursilsble fof @ period
of time, ultimately less than full recowery of its assets, or both. Because all of the fund's cash i in custody with a single
institution, sudh ledded aould be significant and culd matenally impa the ability of the Fund 19 adhievie 4 ilvestment
ohjective, The Fund is subject 10 oredit risk to the extent that this institution may be unable to fulil its obiigations to repay
Bnoants craned.

Liguidity Risk
Ipreestors should be aware that thevalue of Units might (a8 &5 well a5 rise, Ireestment in the Fund imobes a degree of nisk;
theve cin bend pdurance (hat the Fund's investmin object e will be advieved,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

Thi Furd is exposed to daily repurchase of its Units but managemen belisves that the fund has suffidient resources 1o
ment the peesent and foreseeable needs of its business operations and, Finecessany, the Bguidity 1o fund repurchases ard

FINAMCIAL RESK BAANAG EFENT |continued])
Liquidty sk fcontinued)

achiewe a marked position appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position s moniiored ontinually by
maragament (o ensune that the Fund has the ablity to mest its cbligations,

Curreacy Risk

The fund holds monetary ard non-monetary assets and nours monetary and roremonetary Babilities cerominated in
orrencies other than USD, the Furctional Currency. [ is therefore mopoted to curtency risk, a4 the wilue of the ety and
liabslitles cenominated in other currendes {“ron-US0T) will luduate dee to charges in exchange rates. The Fund may
erter into ourrency hedging transactions from time to time in onder (o limit s exposure fo oumency riskc.

The imvestment managee monitors the Furd’s curmercy exposure on 2 daily basis,

COPANMTIVIENTS AND COMTINGE NCIES

In the novmal course of business, the Trester on behalf of the Fund may enter into contracts that contain a vaniety of
representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications, The genoral indemnifications apply not only
to the extemt such represertations and warrantes ane enines but also may cover third parties such as the Fund's
Admrimistrator, Auditor or Imesstment Manager for claims related to the srvices performed for the fund, The Trustes's
[T ] ExprLne under any such arrargaments s wnkrown, % Eposune only arises to the extent future daims that
hawe not yot oocurned are made against the Tasfer. However, based on experionoe, the Trustee copaects the risk of loss to
e risrmitte

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management performed a subsecuent eaents review up to June 28, 2019 which is the date the finarcial statements. were
available to be ivseed,

Effectioe March 1, 2019 through June 26, 2019, there were mibsoriptions of USD 194527 In respect of JFY Monthiy
Distrilurtion Class and there were subscriptions of WD 537 546 in respect of 7Y Semi-Arnual Citribution Cless, thene were
subscriptions of USD 5,756 in respect of USD Monthly Cistribution Class, there were subsoriptions of USD 537,787 in
respect of USD Semi-Annual Distribution Jass,

Effective March 1, 2019 through June 26, 2019, there were redemplions of USD 933,245 in respect of JFY Momthly
Distribution Class and thone were recemptions of LSH 443,246 |n respect of 1PY Seml-Anrual Dntribution Gass, there waere
recemptions of WSS nil in respect of USS Monthly Distribution (lass, there were redemptions of USD 2, 784,165 in respect
of USD Semi-dnrwal Detdbution Class

Theere were distributisng of USD 33,003 in respect of 18Y Manthly Disbibation Oess. There wene dittributisns of LSD
151,881 in respect of JFY SemiAnnual Distribution Class. Thene were distributions of USS 22,415 in nespedt of LSE
Maribly Distribution e There were distributions of USD 138459 b regpect of USD Sermi-Anaual [Setribation Cled.

Theeri are ni other Significarnt events to report & thy relste to the Fund.
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2020

82,979,868.64 8,940,251,047
1,057,705.52 113,957,193
81,922,163.12 8,826,293,855
301,314
3,585,263
55,181
401,107
10.15 1,094
10.50 1,131

9,593

9,771
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Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
MA02109-3661 40
40 Water Street Boston, MA02109-3661 U.S.A.

10
10

15

21

50

@ ®)
©
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@

2020
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4,987

2020

11
15

235,777,282,595
2,802,064,491

90
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2020 30
UFJ 107.74
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2020 31
2020 2019
5,628,385 606,402 3,938,928 424,380
2,851,607 307,232 3,190,108 343,702
70,125 7,555 71,250 7,676
8,550,117 921,190 7,200,286 775,759
8,550,117 921,190 7,200,286 775,759
148,200 15,967 146,480 15,782
79,840 8,602 124,271 13,389
1,643,547 177,076 2,462,391 265,298
1,871,587 201,645 2,733,142 294,469
480,000 2020 31
2019 31
480,000 480,000 51,715 480,000 51,715
6,198,530 667,830 3,987,144 429,575
6,678,530 719,545 4,467,144 481,290
8,550,117 921,190 7,200,286 775,759
17 2020
129332
107.74
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2020 31
2020 2019
5,628,385 606,402 3,938,928 424,380
2,851,607 307,232 3,190,108 343,702
70,125 7,555 71,250 7,676
8,550,117 921,190 7,200,286 775,759
1 0.108 1 0.108
1 0.108 1 0.108
8,550,118 921,190 7,200,287 775,759
148,200 15,967 146,480 15,782
79,840 8,602 124,271 13,389
1,643,547 177,076 2,462,391 265,298
1,871,587 201,645 2,733,142 294,469
480,000 2020 31
2019 31
480,000 480,000 51,715 480,000 51,715
6,198,531 667,830 3,987,145 429,575
6,678,531 719,545 4,467,145 481,290
8,550,118 921,190 7,200,287 775,759
17 2020
129332
107.74
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2020 31
2020 2019
19,213,975 2,070,114 22,335,065 2,406,380
19,213,975 2,070,114 22,335,065 2,406,380
(1,183,017) (127,458) (1,276,979) (137,582)

(15,585,538)  (1,679,186) (19,056,557)  (2,053,153)
(15,764) (1,698) (20,971) (2,259)
(228,510) (24,620) (161,343) (17,383)
(17,012,829)  (1,832,962) (20,515,850)  (2,210,378)

2,201,146 237,151 1,819,215 196,002
10,240 1,103 (53,798) (5,796)
10,240 1,103 (53,798) (5,796)

2,211,386 238,255 1,765,417 190,206

2,211,386 238,255 1,765,417 190,206

2,211,386 238,255 1,765,417 190,206

107.74
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2020 31
¢ >y >y ¢ >y > c > o D
480,000 51,715 2,221,727 239,369 2,701,727 291,084
1,765,417 190,206 1,765,417 190, 206
31 480,000 51,715 3,987,144 429,575 4,467,144 481,290
2,211,386 238,255 2,211,386 238,255
31 480,000 51,715 6,198,530 667,830 6,678,530 719,545
107.74
2020 31
2020 2019
2,201,146 237,151 1,819,215 196,002
10,240 1,103 (53,798) (5,796)
2,211,386 238,255 1,765,417 190,206
339,626 36,591 1,074,174 115,732
(861,555) (92,824)  (1,182,743) (127,429)
1,689,457 182,022 1,656,848 178,509
1,689,457 182,022 1,656,848 178,509
3,938,928 424,380 2,282,080 245,871
5,628,385 606,402 3,938,928 424,380

107.74
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2020 31
309GT
EU
IFRS IFRS IFRIC
2020 31 IFRS
1ASB IFRIC EU
IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC
IFRS 16 2019
2020 31 2019 31
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IFRS 9
IFRS 9

2018

1AS 39

IFRS 9

2018
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2018

IAS 18

)
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2020 31

2020 31 2019 31
100
2020 31 2019 31
2020 31 2019 31
30
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JPY GBP SGD
2020 31
2019 31 10
2020 2019
JPY 36,000 54,000
GBP 76,000 95,000
SGD 15,000 56,000
EUR 2,000
2020 31 2020
5,628,385 5,628,385
2,851,607 2,851,607
70,125 70,125
148,200 148,200
79,840 79,840
1,643,547 1,643,547
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2019 31 2019

3,938,928 3,938,928

3,190,108 3,190,108

71,250 71,250

146,480 146,480

124,271 124,271

2,462,391 2,462,391

2020 31 2020 31
2020 31 a
@ ®) ®

) ¢ ¢ C
4,939,036 686,456
2,265,335 991,951

6,464,511 179,247
1,801,198 137,386
115,458 7,001
16,010,138 179,247 1,822,794
2019 31 2019 31
2019 31 a
@ o) ®

) ¢ ¢ ¢
4,735,296 339,775
9,478,941 1,253,147
2,634,320 307,671
2,071,148 549,065
136,852 12,733
19,056,557 2,462,391

(a
(b
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100-8233
IR
http://www_smth_jp/en/
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MNIEK® AM GLOBAL CAYALAN LTD
CONSOLIDATEDR STATEMENT OF FINANCEIAL POSITION
AS AT 3 MARCH 2020

Pt azn g
AL -
Assets
Current Assets
Cash wnd cash equivalents 5 LeXeags 8 1938928
Accoim % recervblbe 2 REY T 31 108
Aceried moome mnd propuid expense T 128 T2y
Taotal Currenl Asels BA50117 T2 256
Taotal Mon-Current Assels
Total Asseis % 8,550,117 % T200,256
Liabilities am Eqisiiy
Current Liatlities
Accued expenses and deferred income 5 lag200  § 146,480
Accoumis payable TR0 124,271
Amounis payable io group usderiakmgs L 13547 2462591
Tatal Current Linbilities 1,871,547 173142

Equlty

Capiisl anid Reserves Altributable so Equity
Halders of ihe Company

Share caplial (31 par valie, 450,000 s
mdhorized, 480,000 shares ssoed and 420,000 AR, 000
outdandme al 31 March 2000 and 201 93

Retamed eamings 0158550 1587144
Tatal Equity BETE 230 4467144
Total Liabilitles and Fquity L3 R TA00.256

The anmexwed noles from 1 1o 8 Form an mlegral parl of these fmndal datomomts.

The fimancial stalement s on pages 8 o 1|7 were approved by ibe Board of Directors on & August 2000 ansd sathorised for sape and
sigmed on ks behalf by

Company registered membser: P29332
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MNIKEOD AM CLOBAL CAYVAAN LTD

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Asaris

Currenl Asiels
Cash and cash equinalends

Accounts recenvable

Acciand inoome and propadd cxponss
Tolal Current Asels

Moo Currend Assels
Evestmen m subsidiary
Total MNon-Current Assels

Tatal Assels

Liabitities apl Equity

Current Linbititles
Accnaed expenses and defemed moome
Agcounts payable

payilile to group ings

Taotal Curremi Linbilitles

Exquliy

Caplital and Reserves Atiribatable i Equity
Halders of ie Company

Share capital (31 par value, 420,000 dhares mithorized,
480 Wk shares issaeed and oultmnding o 31 Mardh
2020wl 2009

Retained carmings
Tolal Equity

Tolal Liabibties and Equity

Thie anmexed noles from 1 bo & form an integral pant of ihese Neancial dalenmis

Ml

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

a0 FLlL
5628 588 ER LR
2850 607 ERE LRI
Ti125 71,250
250117 o Bik 28
| 1
| 1
B.550,118 TR TRT
143,200 146,480
THEAD 124171
1,643 547 2462391
1,871,287 2,733,142
LERLLI] AR (W)
5,198 53] 3087145
6,678,531 4 467,145
835,118 T.100 28T

The financial statements on pages 8 1o 17 were approved by the Board of Directars on & Aungust 2030 and asthorised lor isse and

sigreed on its hehall by

£l
ireglor

Company reghstered number: 129332
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MIERD AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD

ETATEMENT OF COMSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE ¥EAR EXNDED 31 MARCH 2020

Operatiing Hevenises
Investment management and advisory fees from third parties

Total operating revenoes

Operating Expenses
Sub-advisory fees with thind pamies
Sub-advisory fees with group undertakings
Audit fees
Cether operaling and adminisirative expenses
Todal operating expenses

Operating Profit

Oty Income | {Expenss)
Other mcome{expense), Met foreign exchange gain (loss)
Total other expenses

Frof Before Income Tax
Insome tax expenss

Prafit ntiribalabde to equity holders of the parent

Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Toisl Comprefsensive Inconse for §lse year

Al the Grouap’s operalions are chassified s continuing

The anncwed motes from 1 to 8 form an imegral pan of these fimancis] statements,

Nnde

150/199
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2020 e
19.303.972 12335065
1223075 11335065
ELIB30IT) (1.276.979)

(15.585.53%) (12056557
(18,7643 (20971}
{228 510) (161, 345)
(17,00 1.529) (20,51 58500
2,201,148 1812218
10,149 (33,704}
1240 (53,798

2,211 346 1,7654017
2211386 1,765407
2211388 1,765.417
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MIEKD AM CGLOBAL CAVAIAN LTD
CONSOLIDATEDR STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR EXDED 31 MARCH 1020

Maie Share Helalned

Capital Earnings Tetal
Balunce at | April 2018 T moh 3 2338 s rioet
Nt profit . TH [76sa17
Dividend paid ' : :
Balance st 31 March 2019 5 000§ 398714 s 414
Nt profit : 2211385 2211385
Dividend paid -
Balamce 91 31 March 2020 5 ASIO00 & 5194530 5 65TRSI0

Thie anmeced notes from 1 bo 8 Form an inteeral pant of these faancisl statements.
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MNIEKD AM CLOBAL CAYAAN LTD
CONSOLIPATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR EXDED 31 MARCH 1020

Nale 200 2019
Cash Flows from Operating Activithes
Operating Profit 5 EEITRET ] 1,519,218
Addusdments for
et foreign exchmnge loss 10,240 153,794
mumﬂ cash fows before movenents in workng 2311386 1765417
Changes In operaiing sssets and llabilites
Dhocrcase | (increase) h rectivables B3 ED6 1,074,174
(Drooreasc) / indrease i pajyables (B, 555} (1 182,743)
el Cnsh Cemerated from Opsrating Actlvities 1,659 457 1,656, 54%
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Diviaderyits pabd -
et Cash from Flmancing Adtivities
el Increase (m Cash snd Cash Eqguivalens 1689 457 1,654,548
Cash and cush equivalents, beginaing of the year R EL L] 2,282,080
Cash and Cash Equivalenis, End of the Year L1 £ 525 AR% % 3,538 %

The anmexved noles from 1 bo & Form an dnicgral pant of these fancial statements
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MIEKG AM GLOBAL CAYAAN LTI
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED M MARCH 2020

Naote 1= Genernl Information

Nikka AM Clobal Cayman Lid “ihe Company’™) snd fis subsidiary (logether “the Oroup™) are meomporated @ d domialed m i
Cayman Islamds. The sddress of the registered office ks PO Box 300GT, Ugland Hoase, South Churh Street, Grand Cayman,
Caymman |slands. The privcgpal adivities of the Group and Comgpany durmg the year were the provision of mvestmont advice and
invesimant managenyenl services to thind paribes and other group mesbas. These pon-dawory fimsncial aaemnents have been
prepared o aid the preparation of consolidsted financial datomeis for the informedinte parent company:

Note 2 — Summary of Signilicant Accounting Principles
The principal sccounting palicies adapled are scf out below:.

Basls of preparation

The Group and Company”s firmcal datanmis have been prepared i sccondancs with nlem atbonal Fimncil Reponting Standards
a5 adopted by the European Uniom (IFRSs 85 sdopted by the EU and [FRIC interpretations applicsble to companies reporiing
onder IFRS, Asat 31 March 2020, the Company had adopled all IFRSs snd interpretations that had been i=ased by the Intemational
Aceointing Standands Boand (“LASE™) and Inlemstional Fmancial Repoting Inapedations Committes (“IFRICT), and endorsed
by the EU. The accountimg policies set oul below have been applicd consistently 1o all pertods presented m these finangial
slalements. [FRSs compriss accounting standards ssaiod by the JASH and its predecessor body as well as interpretations isaied by
the IFRIC and its predecessor bady.

In prepanng thas st of fimencnl 4@ ommils, the Company prepaned plasable downade soonaros sdh as roduclion m revenues
due 1o ghobal market declmes resalting from the paslemic. Management is satisfied that the results of Ihese scenanios supports the
going concem basis of prepantion,

Basis of consolidation

Subvadinres wre enifties controdled by the Group, Control edists when the Group bis the power 1o govern the financial md operating
policies of am entiny 5o as o obiaim benefits from its activities, In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential
voling rights thet sre camently exercisable. The soquisition date is the dale on which conbrel is trmnsfered 1o the aoguirer, The
fimincial stalements of subsudiaries are included m the consolidatod Mnamcial stabememts from the date thal control comniaoes
wnlil the date thal conlrol cekses, Losses applicable 1o the non-conirollisg inlerests in & subsidiary are allocated to the nos-
conliriliing mberesds even if dong o comses the non-conlrodling intereds 1o bave a deficil balamce.

New seoounting standards adopled
IFRS 16 Loase Accoumlimg s dfeclive foom 1 Jarmary 200 9. The company has no leases and thardfore the stndard has mo cffect
om Use company”s Gnancial satensents.

Alensuremenl conventlon
The financisl sstements Beve been prepared under the hisiomcal cost convention

Estlmates mnd sssammplions

Thie preparation of financial dalenents requises management to make estimales and assemptions that affect the #noanis reporied
Tor aseets and isbilitres as ul the balance sbheet date and the amounds ropotod For revemics and oipmses during the vear. The matune
ol estimation means that actual sutcomes could dedfer from those etimates. The asamptions and esismates, which are contimioushy
reviewed, ar¢ based on past experignee and ether factors, inchading expectations regarding likely developenents in the futere. Al
301 March 2030 wed 2019 thore were no malorial edmmales of ssumplions.

Accounis recelvable

Avccounts reccivable mclude smounts duc for mmagomont, sdvisory amd perfomance focs and ansamis due from customers and
athars. All aceounts receivable sre repivaléde on domand or within one yesr. They are recorded in the balance shed af oost, redisced
by appropriate allowsnces for estinaated imecoverable smounts, and they are imlerest bearing.

Accounts payalibe

Agcounts payshle include amounts doe for sub-gdvisory services and performance fees and ansoants due 1o vendors s alhers
All mecounts payable are clasafied according o the substance of the contrachnl amunganent endered into. They are paywble on
dernzml or wathan one year and are recorded o the balanoe sheet al cost. Amounts owed to group undatakings are unseoured,
interest free and have mo fied termas of repaymenl

Casly anl cash equi valets
Cash and cash eqaivalents comprise cash in banks s in hand sad short-dem deposits with an eriginal maturity of thres monihs
of los and foregn asmencies beld by the Group and Company. For the purposes of the cash flow stalemsent, cash amd cash
cquivabants consast of cash and cash agrvalmls s defined sbove, nel of e anding bk overdrafts

Operatlng revenmes

Operuting revenues include commissons and investment management, invedment advisory and performance fees. Opemling
revenues wre measuned  the fur wvalse of the considernlzon received or receivable for services provided in the normal course of
busieess, vt of discounts, tradl fees, VAT mnd cther sales related taves,

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers replaced [AS 18 Revense and introduced o five step approach 1o revemie
recognition: {1 identifying the contract with the customer; i1} idestifying the performamce obli gataons: 1ii) kentify the condract price
[ mssocisted revemse; ivh allocate the considerstion to the relevant performance obdigntiong sl %) recognising the revenue as the
performance obdigalions arc satisficd.
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MIKKG AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED M MARCH 2020

Thie Company has applied [FRS 15 retrospectively, bt has determined that there is no adjustment 1o the retamed camings a8 1
Agril 2008, Comparative information hasnot been sffected s therefore no restatement is required. The Company has underiaken
a review of its contacts with customeers and concluded that there isne impadt on the way in which it recognises its revenues zsno
clemend of 8 revenie relies on estimates of 8 subgeet 1o reversal of significant restalement.

Commisaons and mvestment managanon! and advasory fees and associaled charges are recogrised when the sorioes concomed
are rendered. Invesimenl mamagenent and advisory foes are caleulatod as a parcentage of assdsunder managemanl. Commissons
are recognised on @ trade dale basis, cilculated on o percenlage of the smbe. Parformmce fees are recognised i the period in which
they become doe and colledable.

Operating expenses
Operaling oxpanses are sccountod for whn they become pavable.

rividends
Equity dividemda bo the sharcholbder of the Oroup are recopnised as a lisbility & the period during which they are declared and
appraved,

Foreign curremcies
The fimdtional e presentational currency of the Growp mnd Compamy i US doliars (3

Transactions in curroncics othear than US dolbars are reconded a1 the rates of exchange prevailing on the dees of the lransactions
At each balance sheet dute. monetary sesels md lishilities that are demominsted in foreign currencies s retranstated ot the rates
prevailing on thie balmce sheel date. Mon-monctary ascete and liahilities carried o2 fair value that e denominated & forcign
currencics are transated ot the mtes prevailing at the date when Fair value was determmed. Ganns and losses arssng om relranstation
are inchided in ret profit or boss for the pertod, except for exchange differences arising on nos-monetary sssets and liabilities where
the changes in fair vahzc are recogmised directly in coaity.

Financis] nsiriments

IFES 9, Financial Instruments replaced the classification and measnwement contamed in 1AS 3% Financial Instrumests: Recagnition
amd Measmement (TAS 39), In accordance with [FRS 9, the Company’s financial assets have been reclassafied i amonised cost,
Tair valuc through cther comprehensave income or fur valscthrough prafil or loss. The Compamy bas applicd IFRS 9 retrospoctively,
with the mtantion of inchiding sy requined adpmsment 1o raained camings 23 a0 1 April 2015 Comparative mbomnation bas nol
besn redated.

Thie vast majorty of the Cotmpasy’s financial mstrumeits are cish mid receivables which are messaired at smorised cost.

Followmg the Company®s adoplion of IFRS 9 on | April 2008 the Company has evalualed patentiz] oredit Jossoes on all finandal
assets that are measred o1 smortised cost. Factons considered in determ inimg whether a defau®t is likely or possibe inchade whether
a paymenl s overdue fand the length of that pesiod), sy known deteriorlion in the credit quality of a client/counterparty or other
isanes thal cotshd adversely alfect 8 clbent’ s'connterparty’s ¢redit quality.

For financial uesels where there is no known issues affecting credit quality. expected oredil losses are calculated based on the keses
thad are expected 1o be tnairred aver a follimg belve-momth pert od. Given tlse nature of the Company’s finsndal assels {1.c. mostly
cash m banki, there is n very bow credit risk. The Company is also considering the use of money market funds 10 indresse
diversificalion and further reduce crodit sk

For any financial swects where the contractual payment is more than 30 days pasd doe, the default posilion is to nzamme @ inorese
in eredil mek. However, defamilt levels in the pad have been mmmatonal and thore were mo Foe recervatblos past doe as al 31 March
020,

Investments in usbsldiaries
Investments in subsdaries are stated in e parenl company’s babmce sheet 0l cost less any provisions for impadmaent.

Mote 3= Invesdment in Subsidiary
COMPANY

Al 31 March 2000 and 31 March 2019 the Company had an imvesimeent of 31 In the opmion of the direstors, the Company”s
invesiment is not impaired. Details of the investnent s as follows

Mumbser, class and

Corintry of pereeniage of diares
Livesies Imcorpuos atian Frincipal activity Dl byt Coampany
ikdo AM {Cayman) Lid ?:ﬂ‘.:;,f‘ Geneni] panovy : ?;T?;i‘i.'-“

Note 4 = Taxution

AR 31 Muarch 20200 and 2019, the tax rate spplicable to the Group asd the Company’s prafits is # becanse there is no b levied
on Cayman Blands companies.
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MIEKG AM GLOBAL CAYAAN LTI
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED M AMARCH 0o

MNote 5 - Financial Risk Factors

The Group and Conpany’s financial instruments comprise cash amvd cash eqeivalants and receivable and payable balances thal
anse from s daily operalions. All cash and cash equivalmnts are camed al cost which s consadened Eo approxammbe to fair vahse
dhic 1o the shor term maturity of these financial mamments, The main risks assocrated with the Group and Company's Gnancial
assets and lisbiilics s set ol bedow;

Credlt risk

Credil sk is defined as the nk of fmanciz] leis due o s counterparty’s faihire to honour its obligation principally in relation 1o
transactions where the Group of Company provides goods or services on dedorred torms and whaare il invests or doposils airplis
cash, The Groap o Company do nol believe thal they are maberially exposed to credit nidk as its smbes debfors are managed group
funds ard therefore managemant =nd performance fees receivable are govemed by its agreements with these fimds. To mitigate
any resiual risk of these aseta failing to be debiversd. the Greap and Company ensure tha the terms of these sgreements in
relation to payments of manygement md performance fees are adbered 1o by moniloning its aged debbor mnadysis against the sgreed
service bevel agreaments

The Group and Company ot the policy of dealimg with azstomers of sppropaate credit history. For olher financial assets, the
Ceoup and Cotpany sdopts the paliey of deading with Tinancial insitutsns md olber counterpatics with high credil raings. Thare
are na financial assets pasd dus ard / of mmpaired 25 51 31 March 2020 and 2019, Tradk recervables are due 1 least quanerly, and arc
mnormalhy seitled within 30 days of their due dale, There are no overdue trade receivables ot the balanoe shed dale

Furtber, with regard to bank deposits, the Group mnd Compasry anly deposils money with approved counberpartses on agreed tams

Mar ket risk

Miwrkcet risk {or systemic nisk) is defined as that risk which & common to an entire class of gesels or liabilities whereby their vahse
an fuctuate simply beomse of cconomic changes or othor cvents thal impad lerge portions of the mwkd. The Group and
Company do sl believe that they are exposed bo matenial market msk as the assets the Group and Company miamage are held by
aned For the benefit of fund hobders through seperate legal entities,

Cur risk

Cur:?ﬁﬂti:dlﬁndumnﬁﬂlhmc value of Group or Company asscts mnd Babililies denommated in curreecics otha than
the finaional cumency of the Group of Compay will change in vahie dse 1e movaments in focegn exvcange rases. The Group
anmdl Company are exposed lo cumency risk snsing from vanous currency expoasrnes, primafily with respect to the Japanese Yen
{IFY, Sterlmg Pound §G5P) and Simgapore Dallar (300, The Growp and Company®s fec incomie 1% recemved maindy in USE and
Ty, A 31 March 2020 and 2009, had these currenei 68 trenglhoned'weak ened by 1 0% againd the USD with all other vansbies
incliding tux mate being held consamt, the Group and Compmny's profit before tax for the finmcial year would have been
Higherlower asaneaull of asmency translation |ose=‘gains on the remainmg quroncy doromimted ach balenoes, ade receivablbes

and payshles by the below amaunts
Currency a0 201%
{Bounded to noarest § thousandy
FY H 3,000 3 54,000
GREP TR LA LT
SGD 15,000 F6,000
EUR 2,000 -

Ligquidity risk and Mnancial solvency risk

Lanquidiny risk is defined a5 the risk thst the Group or Company will nol be sble Lo neect its financial obligatvons as they fall dic
The Group and Company”s approsch to managime this risk i 1o enaere thal il hes aafficamt ligedity o meet its Habilities when
duie, both under noemual and Arcssed conditions.

Caplial managemoni
The Gronp s Conpany capital pesition is monilored on an ogoing basis (o aeaure that it s adequale, There are no extemally
imposed capital requirements.

Falr WValue of Financlal lnstruments
The fair valugs of fmancial asseis and fisancal babilibes that are raded in active markets are based on quoled make prices o
deaber price quodations. For all cther finmncisl instruments, the Group detamines fair values using other valustion lechaigues,

For fimancial instnanvents that trede mfrequently and have Litle price transparency. falr value is bess obgeciive. and requires varying
degrees of judgement depending on lquidily, concentration, uncemainty of markel fictors, pricing assumplions and other risks
affecting the specific instrument.

The tabbe below amalyses financsl mansments, into-a fasr value hierarchy based on the vabaation tochmiquee u=ed 10 dearmane fair
value,

®  Level I quoled prices (unadiasted) im sctive markeis for identical asseis or liabilities

® Loviel 20 mputs othor than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observablo for the assol or liability, citber diredly
(0.6 25 prices) of incireatly 4., derived from pricesh

®  Level 3 impuls for the asset or linbility that are pol based on ob=ervable market data funobservable mguls),
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MNIKKG AM CLOBAL CAVMAN LTD
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXNDED 3 MARCH 2020

Year ended 31 March 2428 Level 1 Level 3 Level 3 Tolal 20620
Asrls 5 3 3 5

Cash wd cash exivalent 5618355 - - S6IRIRS
Accoumis reccivable . TE51.607 - 2,851,807
MAcermed mecome and propaid expenee - Mo 128 H T e
Liabsilithes

Acerued expense and deferred income - 148,300 - 148,200
Accoumls payablo . ToB40 . TREM
Accommts pryabilo 16 group o

z kg . 1643547 . LGA3. 54T
Year ended 31 March 2009 Level 1 Lovel 3 Lewel 3 Taotal 2019
Asels 5 3 3 -]

Cash el cosh equivalent EEEEL S - - 1958938
Accounls receivable - 3100108 . ER LT
Acenied meome and propaid expense . Th.250 E 71250
Linbdliibes

Accrued expensc and defored mcome . 146 ARD . 186,450
Acgoumls payable - 124271 - 124271
Acooumis grivalile 16 grop

R . 1461391 . 1462391

Al finamcial s and linbalilics wre camicd at historice] cost. The far vakics of all finmncisl weds and liabdlilics are smilar o
their carryimg valnes owing Lo ther short toma nalure.

Note 6 - Helated Party Tranmactions

Transsctions between the Oroup and Company snd related pariies are disclosed below:

Debior as Creliior as at
Operating Operating atl 3 March 41 March
Year emciod 31 March 2020 Hrevenies —_Eapemses (2) 2020 (b 20Zh)
Nikko Asset Mmnagemant Americas, Inc. : ] - : ] 4. 935,034 5 - 5 GHGALG
Nikdoo Aseet Managamant Europe Lid. - 1265135 . ] 951
Nikko Asset Mmnagement Co. Ltd - 646481 I 9247 2
Hikko Asect Manageménl Asia Lid. - 10155 - 137386
Hikko Assct Management Hong Kong - 115458 - 7001
Toolal 3 3 16,000,138 5 179247 5 B2 TR
Debilor as Credior asal
Operating Operating al 31 March 31 March
Year ended 31 March 2019 Hrvenues Expemes (1) 2019 (b} 201 Hhy
Nikko Asset Management Amenicas, lec. 5 - 5 4,735, 106 5 - 5 IITTS
Nikko Assct Managemant Enrope Lid. - DATRS - 1283147
Nikloo Asset Mmnagement Co Lid - TAMAN - 07671
Nikko Asset Managemant Asia Lid. - 2071148 . SR0065
Hikko Asect Mmagemant Hong Kong a 158852 = 12713
Talal 5 5 19,056 557 5 5 1463291
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MNIKKG AM CLOBAL CAVMAN LTD
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXNDED 31 MARCH 2020

{a) Operating expemses paid (o relsted panies we payable under invesiment management agreements and are for fland
MENRECMEN] SETVICEs,

b The amounts cutdtanding are unseamed and will be setiled in cash. No gusrmitees have been given of received. No provisions
lave b made for doubtfii] detis m respect of the amounts: owed by related partics.

Mikko Assct Mmnzgemonl Amaricas, Ing., Nikke Asscl Management Ewrope Lid., WNikko Assct Mamagenyend Asin Lid s Nikke
A=id Managomont Hong Bong are Tellow aobssdiarics. Mikko Asict Managanant Co, Lid s an imdireet sharchaolder of the
aforementioned subsdiaries,

Note 7 - Ultimente Holding Company

Thie Orcaap is @ wholly owned subssdiary of Mikko AM Global Holdings Led, s immedistc parent mndeniaking, a company which
is registered in Englan send Wales.

In the opinion of the directors the witimate parent company, and controlling pany, i Sumatome Mitan Trest Holdings, Tne., a
compay incorporsted in Jepen, Financial stalensents for Susmitoma Mitsal Trust Holdmgs, ne. are svailable 1o the public firom

the Investor Relatsons Office, Financial Plamming Department, Sumitomo Mitsni Trust Hnldn‘r. Imc. L=dsl, M1n|nv|.l|.||.i1| Chiyeda-
ko, Tokyo 1008233, Japan. Copies of the annisal repert can be viewod of retricved firom

Mobe § — Subsequent Events

Subsequent 1o the stetement of finmncial postion dule, there were no events which had m impad on the consolidated and mdivadunl
fknancial sabensents of the Company.
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CIBC
CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
2020 38,781,259 41 7,829
CIBC 1965
2020
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2019 12 1,010,000,000 1,088 1,740
(©))
UFJ
2020 405
-2
SMBC
2020 875
(O]
2020 173 63
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Report of Independent Auditors

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of Doubleline Total Return
Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Doubleline Total Return Fund (the “ Fund” ), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of February 29,
2020, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the year then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter

collectively referred to as "financial statements".

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Doubleline Total Return Fund as of February 29, 2020, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

June 26, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (* the company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2020 which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2020, the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related
notes including the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons
set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 02 April 2020.  Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the company’ s financial
position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that
could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the
date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the company’ s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the company’ s financial resources or
ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the company will continue in
operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director’ s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material

misstatements in the other information.
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Directors”™ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

06 August 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of Doubleline Total Return
Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Doubleline Total Return Fund (the “ Fund” ), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of February 28,
2019, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the year then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter

collectively referred to as "financial statements".

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Doubleline Total Return Fund as of February 28, 2019, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

June 28, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (the “ Company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2019 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company Statement of Financial
Position as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related notes including
the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons set out in note
1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (* ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms

of our engagement letter dated 3 May 2019. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and

appropriate basis for our opinion.

The impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union on our audit

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial
statements. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors and related
disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of
these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the company®s future prospects and
performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are
subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We
applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the company®s future
prospects and performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible
future implications for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the group or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the group and the company®s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at
least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the group®s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the group and company®s financial
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resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these

respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the group will continue in operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director®s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.
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Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

2 August 2019
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